



KNOWLEDGE • RESOURCES • TRAINING

Remittance Advice Resources and FAQs



Target Audience: Providers, Physicians, Suppliers, and Medicare Fee-For-Service Program (also known as Original Medicare)

The Hyperlink Table at the end of this document provides the complete URL for each hyperlink.



Page 1 of 53 ICN 905367 December 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Introduction | 4 |
|---|--------------------------------------|
| General Information | 4 |
| Professional and Institutional RAs | 4 |
| SPR vs ERA Data Elements in the RA Enrolling in ERA Free Medicare ERA Software Commercial ERA Software How Is the ERA available? How Is the ERA Generated? | 566788 |
| Reading An Institutional RA | 9 |
| Introduction Are the RAs Standardized? How Do I View the Information in an Institutional ERA? | 9 9 9 |
| How Do I Get the PC Print Software Program and User Guide? 1 How Does the PC Print Present the ERA Information? 1 Option 1: The AC Screen (Institutional ERA) 1 Option 2: The SC Screen (Institutional ERA) 1 Option 4: The Provider PS Screen (Institutional ERA) 1 | 0 0 1 2 5 |
| Reading an Institutional SPR | 5 |
| The Components of an Institutional SPR | 5 6 7 |
| Balancing an Institutional RA1 | 8 |
| General Rules for Remittance Balancing 1 How Do I Use Transaction-Level Balancing of an Institutional RA? 1 On an Institutional ERA 1 Claim-Level Balancing an Institutional RA. 2 On an Institutional ERA 2 On an Institutional SPR 2 Service-Line-Level Balancing an Institutional RA 2 On an Institutional SPR 2 On an Institutional ERA 2 On an Institutional SPR 2 On an Institutional FRA 2 | 8 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 |
| On an Institutional SPR | 5 |

| Reading a Professional Remittance Advice (RA) | |
|---|--|
| Viewing the information in an ERA: | |



TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

| Presentation of ERA information Using MREP software | 26 |
|--|----|
| Viewing Remittance Information using the MREP Software | 28 |
| The Remit Summary Tab | |
| The Data View Tab | |
| The Search Tab | |
| The Glossary Tab | |
| Generating Special Reports Using the MREP Software | |
| Generating Special Reports Using the MREP Software Continued | |
| Fields Appearing on MREP Special Reports | |
| Reading a Professional SPR | |
| Types of SPRs Available | |
| How Do I Switch from an SPR to an ERA? | |
| Components of the Professional SPR | |
| Header Information | |
| Assigned Claims | |
| Assigned Claims - Claim-Level Information | 40 |
| Assigned Claims - Service-Line-Level | 41 |
| Assigned Claims - Totals | 41 |
| Assigned Claims - Adjustments Line | |
| Assigned Claims - Totals for All Assigned Claims | |
| Assigned Claims - Provider-Level Adjustment Detail | |
| Unassigned Claims | |
| Unassigned Claims - Adjustments Line | |
| The Glossary Section | |
| Balancing a Professional RA | |
| General Rules for Remittance Balancing | |
| Transaction-Level Balancing | |
| On a Professional ERA. | |
| On a Professional SPR | |
| Claim-Level Balancing | 47 |
| On a Professional ERA | |
| On a Professional SPR | |
| Service-Line-Level Balancing | |
| ERA | 48 |
| SPR | 49 |
| | |
| Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) | |

| A Resources |
|-------------|
|-------------|



INTRODUCTION

The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) prepared this Remittance Advice (RA) booklet for Medicare Providers so you may conveniently access RA information. This booklet contains consolidates information and allows different provider types to easily navigate to topics pertinent to them. **To go directly to a section, click on the topic below**.

- 1. General Information
- 2. Reading an Institutional RA
- 3. Reading a Professional RA
- 4. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
- 5. Resources/Embedded URL Table and Disclaimer

GENERAL INFORMATION

Professional and Institutional RAs

Part A, Institutional Providers, submit claims to Medicare Administrative Contractors (MACs). After MACs process these claims, they generate an **Institutional RA** as a companion to the payment or as an explanation of no payment.

Part B Providers also submit claims to MACs. After the MACs process the claims, they generate an RA as a companion to the payment or as an explanation of no payment. Providers submitting professional claims to MACs receive a **Professional RA**.

MACs send claim adjudication and payment information to providers, suppliers, and billers using an Electronic Remittance Advice (ERA) or a Standard Paper Remittance (SPR) along with payments. These RAs give explanations and guidance as to whether a payment was or was not made, or if the payment differs from what the provider submitted. The ERA or SPR conveys itemized information for each claim and/or line enabling the provider to associate the adjudication decisions with those submitted claims/lines. The ERA or SPR reports the reason for each adjustment, and the value of each adjustment. Adjustments can happen at line, claim, or provider level. An ERA reports the adjustment reasons using standard codes. For any line or claim level adjustment, three sets of codes may be used:

- 1. Claim Adjustment Group Code (Group Code)
- 2. Claim Adjustment Reason Code (CARC)
- 3. Remittance Advice Remark Code (RARC)



Group Codes assign financial responsibility for the unpaid portion of the claim/service line balance, for example, Contractual Obligation (CO) Group Code assigns responsibility to the provider and Patient Responsibility (PR) assigns responsibility to the patient. Medicare beneficiaries may be billed only when Group Code PR is used with an adjustment. CARCs provide an overall explanation for the financial adjustment and RARCs supplement the CARCs with the addition of a more specific explanation. While providers receive an ERA or SPR, Medicare beneficiaries receive a Medicare Summary Notice (MSN) indicating how much financial responsibility the beneficiary incurs as a result of the claim.

At the provider level, adjustments are usually not related to any specific claim or service line in the RA, and Provider Level Balance (PLB) reason codes are used to explain the reason for the adjustment. Some examples of provider level adjustment are:

- 1. An increase in payment for interest due as a result of the late payment of a clean claim by Medicare
- 2. A deduction from payment as a result of a prior overpayment
- 3. An increase in payment for any provider incentive plan

Note: The SPR also reports these standard codes, and provides the code text as well. One check or <u>electronic</u> <u>funds transfer</u> (<u>EFT</u>) is issued when payment is due, representing all benefits due from Medicare for the claims itemized in that ERA or SPR.

Payees use RA information as inputs to patient accounting system/accounts receivable (A/R) and general ledger applications. In addition, RA information may indicate a need for you to resubmit a claim with corrected information. RA information also indicates whether you can appeal the payment.

SPR vs ERA

You may receive an RA from Medicare in an ERA, or an SPR. Although the information on ERAs and SPRs is similar, the two formats are arranged differently. The ERA offers some data and administrative efficiencies not available in an SPR.

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) does not cover the SPR, so service-line information may not appear on some Institutional SPRs like it does on an ERA. The SPR shows the same segments, fields, and codes that are on the ERA, which helps you to make sure that the 835 balances at three levels (transaction, claim, and service-line).

Any health care professional who is active in the Medicare Program and submits claims, may receive an ERA. If you submit your claims on paper, or if you send claims electronically and do not have your own submitter number and want to receive ERAs directly, you must complete the Separate Remittance Agreement form. You may allow a billing service or clearinghouse to receive the ERA files on your behalf by completing the Provider/ Submitter Agreement form. Should you need assistance in preparing the necessary paperwork, contact your <u>MAC's EDI Helpline</u>.



There are a number of advantages to using the ERA versus the SPR. The amount payable for each line and/or claim as well as each adjustment applied to a line or claim can be automatically posted to accounting or billing applications from an ERA, eliminating the time and cost for staff to post this information manually from an SPR.

ERAs generally contain more detailed information than SPRs. Additionally ERAs may enable providers to automate follow-up actions after receiving an RA.

Note: MACs do not send SPRs if you have been receiving ERAs for more than 31 days (Institutional Providers) and 45 days (Professional Providers) respectively. If you submit claims through a billing service or clearinghouse, or a submitter/sender ID that is currently receiving ERAs, you will no longer receive your SPR effective with the date of completion of the ERA setup.

Data Elements in the RA

The basic data elements of the RA can be alphabetic, numeric, or alphanumeric. The HIPAA-compliant Accredited Standards Committee (ASC) X12 835 format standards define data elements that appear on all Medicare RAs as **Required** or **Situational**.

- The required fields are mandatory for MACs to include in the RA
- The use of situational fields depends on data content and business context (Medicare requirements), and providers use them if the situation applies

If your MAC bases payment on a procedure code (Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System/Current Procedural Terminology (HCPCS/CPT) code) that is different from the procedure code you submitted on the claim (for example, your MAC revised the HCPCS/CPT code during processing), both procedure code fields appear in the 835.

If there is no difference between the adjudicated procedure code (required field) and the submitted procedure code (situational field), only the adjudicated procedure code field appears in the 835. The submitted code field does not appear because the situation does not apply.

Enrolling in ERA

Directions for enrolling in ERA are available on your MAC's website. That website is available at <u>https://www.cms.gov/Research-Statistics-Data-and-Systems/Monitoring-Programs/Medicare-FFS-Compliance-Programs/</u> <u>Review-Contractor-Directory-Interactive-Map/</u>.

ERA is an outbound electronic data interchange (EDI) transaction that enables you to receive payment information in an electronic file format. If you have software capability in place in your system your MAC can automatically post an ERA file created by Medicare to your accounts receivable system. Once the ERA is in place for you, the payment posting process is more efficient and accurate.



Free Medicare ERA Software

Medicare provides free downloadable translator software that can both read ERAs as well as print the equivalent of an SPR. **PC Print is available for Institutional Providers**, and **Medicare Remit Easy Print (MREP) is available for Professional Providers**. These software products enable you to store, view, and print RAs when you need them, thus eliminating the need to request or await mail delivery of SPRs. The software also enables you to export special reports to Excel and other application programs you may have.

Note: CMS provides these software tools in downloadable form at no charge. However, MACs may charge a small fee for those providers requesting an alternative delivery method for any of these products.

Commercial ERA Software

Although Medicare offers free ERA software, you may decide to purchase software that better fits your business needs. For example, you may seek RA software that is totally integrated with other office management suite applications you use for billing, accounts receivables, reporting capabilities, and other purposes. Otherwise, you may prefer the flexibility of web-based application options eliminating the need to download software updates. Additionally, you may seek integrated software packages that are designed for your type of facility, specialty, or the relative size of your practice.

If you use proprietary software you must confirm that the software version in use meets HIPAA-compliant American Standards Committee (ASC) X12 835 format standards and includes required and situational data elements that comply with Medicare guidelines.

MACs provide directories of approved HIPAA-compliant software vendors, billing services, and clearinghouses. Medicare and its MACs do not endorse any particular commercial ERA product. We encourage you to do your own thorough research when considering purchasing or using software outside of that which CMS provides. Please direct any questions about the features and functionality of such software to the software vendors themselves and not to CMS or its MACs.



Note: Regardless of what software is used for ERA, you should monitor CMS MLN Matters® Article releases for updates to:

- 1. CMS provided PC Print or Medicare Remit Easy Print (MREP)
- 2. Claim Adjustment Reason Codes (CARCs)
- 3. Remittance Advice Remark Codes (RARCs)
 - The CARC and RARC lists are updated three times per year. CMS publishes a MLN Matters® Article advising providers of each update. Updates usually occur on March 1, July 1, and November 1.
 - Reviewing these articles will help you assure that your ERA software has the proper code updates.

How Is the ERA available?

ERAs are available electronically to providers for a specified period of time after the MAC processes your claims. Your MAC determines how long the ERA is available. ERAs offer you additional flexibility when you view your remittance information. This flexibility includes a specialized data view, the ability to create various reports, the ability to search for information in claims and the ability to export data to other applications. ERAs also may enable you to automate follow-up actions like billing the beneficiary for deductible/co-pay.

How Is the ERA Generated?

MACs produce the ERA in the HIPAA-compliant ASC X12N 835 format, often referred to as Transaction 835, or **the 835**.

The 835 that your MAC sends to you is a variable-length record designed for electronic transmission and is not suitable for use in application programs or for viewing by provider personnel. Providers, or the entity receiving the 835, convert this file after transmission into a flat file for manipulation within their systems. This booklet refers to the 005010A1 version of the ASC X12N 835, which is the current adopted HIPAA standard.

Providers who do not receive the 835 directly from Medicare need to confirm receipt of all information from the entity receiving the 835 on their behalf, for example, a financial institution. It is possible that the entity receiving the 835 may not regularly send the RARCs that explain adjustments in reimbursement.



READING AN INSTITUTIONAL RA

This section tells Institutional Providers and billers how to read a Standard Paper Remittance Advice (SPR) and an Electronic Remittance Advice (ERA) using PC Print software. There are three major sections:

- Reading an Institutional ERA: This section provides guidance for reading an Institutional ERA
- **Reading an Institutional SPR:** For providers who elect to receive this information on paper, this section provides similar guidance for reading an Institutional SPR
- **Balancing the Institutional RA:** Presents guidance and examples for balancing the ERA or the SPR so providers' records are consistent with Medicare's records

Introduction

Institutional Providers submit claims to Medicare Administrative Contractors (MACs). After MACs process these claims, they generate an Institutional RA as a companion to the payment or as an explanation of no payment.

Are the RAs Standardized?

Both the Institutional SPR and ERA (when you view them using the free PC-Print software Medicare provides) are standardized to ensure that you receive the necessary information. Institutional Providers using proprietary software to receive an ERA should confirm with their MAC that the software meets the HIPAA-compliant ASC X12N 835 format standards and includes required, as well as situational data elements that comply with the Medicare business context. The SPR mirrors the information provided in an ERA.

For more information on the Medicare standardized data requirement companion guides for the ASC X12N 835, refer to <u>http://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Billing/ElectronicBillingEDITrans/index.html</u>.

How Do I View the Information in an Institutional ERA?

Since the 835 format is meant for electronic transfers only, you cannot easily read the data. Your staff may view and print the information in an ERA using special translator software like the Medicare PC Print translator software program. The PC-based PC Print translator program is an interactive program. It allows you to view, search, and print the Medicare Part A ERA containing all of the data residing within the 835 ERA transmission.

PC Print software produces one of four print versions of data contained in an 835. This allows you to choose how much or how little 835 data to print and offers an advantage over the SPR. The number of Institutional claims you submit in batches, as well as the number of service lines, can be very large. MACs do not include service-line level data in the SPRs they send to Institutional Providers that still prefer to receive SPRs, since such large paper files would be very bulky and expensive to ship.

If you want access to service-line level information you must accept an 835. A number of commercial software vendors also include software in their HIPAA suite that you may use to print a paper version of the 835.



How Do I Get the PC Print Software Program and User Guide?

Medicare provides free downloadable translator software that can both read the ERA as well as print an equivalent of the SPR. Institutional Providers can get PC Print from their <u>MACs</u>.

This software product enables you to store, view, and print RAs when you need them, thus eliminating the need to request or await mail delivery of SPRs. The software also enables you to export special reports to Excel and other application programs you may have and manage. MACs inform you of necessary updates to accommodate code set changes, typically three times a year. Register on your MAC's website to get automatic notifications of updates.

How Does the PC Print Present the ERA Information?

PC Print offers four different options to display and print data contained within the ERA.

Option 1: The All Claims (AC) screen: The AC screen displays 835 data in a manner similar to the format and content of an SPR. This screen lists all of your claims that completed processing on the date indicated on the ERA, but does not show service-line data for these claims.

Option 2: The Single Claim (SC) screen: The SC screen provides a detailed summary of data from a single claim. An SC screen is available for each claim listed on the AC screen. This screen provides information about denied or non-covered claims. You may use this to send a claim to a secondary or tertiary payer. Service-line data, if applicable, appears on this screen.

Option 3: The Bill Type Summary (BS) screen: The BS screen provides a summary of claims you billed for each Type of Bill (TOB), for each provider number and for each Fiscal Year (FY). For example, if a Home Health Agency (HHA) billed 32X and 33X claims for FY 16 and FY 17, it would receive the following four billing summaries:

| - TOB 32X for FY 16 | - TOB 32X for FY 17 |
|---------------------|---------------------|
| - TOB 33X for FY 16 | - TOB 33X for FY 17 |

The provider only receives a bill summary for those TOBs that were processed on this ERA. Therefore, if the MAC only processed 32X claims for FY 16 on this ERA, the HHA only receives one bill summary.

Option 4: The Provider Payment Summary (PS) screen: The PS screen provides a summary of your payments from this ERA, regardless of the TOB or Fiscal Year End (FYE). However, if you billed claims using more than one provider number, a PS screen appears for each provider number.

Note: MACs will allow only one receiver of an ERA per National Provider Identifier (NPI). Your MAC can tell you if you are set up on its files for multiple receivers of the ERA.

Please note that the options below provide high level overviews of the screens available for the RAs. You should refer to the <u>Medicare Claims Processing Manual</u>, <u>Chapter 22</u>, <u>Remittance Advice</u> for complete details of headings, fields, and codes used in the RAs. Chapter 9 of the <u>PC Print User Guide</u> provides the information necessary to see and understand the mapping of data for each report.



Option 1: The AC Screen (Institutional ERA)

The AC screen allows you to view information for multiple claims at a glance. This screen provides a listing of all of your claims that completed processing on the date indicated on the ERA. The AC Screen lists claims in alphabetical order by the beneficiary's last name.

Figure 1 Institutional shows an example of the Institutional ERAAC Screen, which contains RA information for two separate claims. The bold lines and bold numbers on the left designate particular sections of the ERA.

| PATIENT NAME ICN NUMBER CLAIM # CLM STATUS NATIONAL PROVIDER | ID | IPATIENT CNTRL NUMBER IMIC NUMBER IMEDICAL REC NUMBER IMIC CHG=x TOB=xxx | FRM DT THE DT CV LN | COST REPI COVDV NCVI NCVDV CLAI NCV L COVI | D CRGS (DR D/DENIED)DR IM ADJS (DR D CRGS (NE) | S NBR (OUT G AMOUNT (DEL S O-C (COI W TCH/ECT(SEQ (PBE | LIER AMT (REI WOCTIBLES (MSP INS AMT (PRO WESTRATN (ESR REDUCT (ISL | HB RATE ALI PRI PAY PRO F COMP LII D AMT CON ET PA | LOW/REIM INT CC CD AMT PAT NE ADJ AMT PER NT ADJ AMT NET REDUCT | TEREST T REFUND RDIEM ANT T. REIMB |
|---|----|---|-------------------------------|---|---|--|---|--|---|---|
| BENEFICIARY 21711500400008FLA 1 1 1234567890 | A | PATIENT CONTROL 1 11111111A FIMUEDITS-000 HIC CHO#HN TOB#131 | 161023 161023 0 | 1 01 1 01 1 01 | 6581.931 3025.001 0.001 3556.931 | 0.001 | 0.00 166.00 54.42 2.87 0.00 | 0.950 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 140.811 107.491 0.001 3192.831 0.001 | 0.00 0.00 0.95 140.81 |
| BENEFICIARY 21711400060607FLA 2 1 1234367890 | В | IPATIENT CONTROL 2 122222222A IPIMUEDITS-000 IMIC CHG-MN TOB-131 | 170311 170311 1 0 | 1 01 1 01 1 01 1 01 | 6481.93 3087.18 0.00 3394.75 | 0.001 0.001 0.001 | 0.00 183.00 49.39 2.77 0.00 | 0.9501 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 | 135.98) 126.51 0.00) 3023.61 0.00) | 0.00 0.00 0.95 135.98 |



Section 1 contains the field names of each position in each AC record.

Section 2 contains the data for each of the two claims. In this section, there may be HHA Claims Only Information:

• There are six fields that are unique to HHAs who have PC Print Version 2.01 or higher.



| FIELDS | DESCRIPTION |
|---------|---------------------------|
| SN DAYS | Skilled Nursing Days |
| PT DAYS | Physical Therapy Days |
| ST DAYS | Speech Therapy Days |
| OT DAYS | Occupational Therapy Days |
| MS DAYS | Medical Social Days |
| NA DAYS | Nurse Aide Days |

- Four fields, SN DAYS, PT DAYS, ST DAYS, and OT DAYS, replace the following four fields seen by all other provider types and HHAs who do not have PC Print version 2.01 or higher: DRG NBR, DRG AMOUNT, DRG O-C, and NEW TECH.
- The other two fields MS DAYS and NA DAYS, replace the following two fields seen by all other provider types and HHAs who do not have PC-Print version 2.01 or higher: OUTLIER AMT and DEDUCTIBLES.

Option 2: The SC Screen (Institutional ERA)

The SC screen provides a detailed summary of data from a single claim. An SC screen is available for each claim on the AC screen. This screen provides information about denied or non-covered claims. You can also find important information such as Claim Adjustment Reason Codes (CARCs) and RARCs on this screen.

Figure 2 Institutional contains an example of the Institutional ERA SC Screen. While the AC screen shows information for multiple claims at once, the SC screen only shows one claim at a time. Use the arrow buttons in the PC Print software to move from claim to claim.



Section 1 of the SC Screen contains the field names of each position in each SC record. Note in this section the field for the NPI: this field displays the NPI of the facility receiving the ERA. The NPI is the number assigned to the provider for billing and identification purposes. For more information about the NPI, refer to the <u>NPI website</u>.

Section 2 contains the charges for the claim. To determine why the charges may be non-covered/denied, see the Adjustment Claim (ADJ) REASON CODES and REMARK CODES fields on the SC screen in Section 5. For the current codes refer to <u>WPC References</u>.

Section 3 shows the days/visits.

Section 4 contains payment data.

Section 5 contains space where Group Codes, CARCs, and RARCs for Institutional Providers generally appear. You can review a full list of current CARCs and RARCs to find important information regarding claims adjustments. For the current codes refer to <u>WPC References</u>.

Section 6 contains a breakout of charges and adjustments for a single claim on a service-line level. This section may contain data for SNF or HHA claims. These fields only appear when an Institutional Provider submitted Part B charges. The first row is column headings and subsequent rows contain data for each service line submitted on that claim. You can find CARCs and RARCs based on a service-line level in this section. For the most current code lists refer to <u>WPC</u>.

There are 12 field headers that are unique to HHAs or hospices that have PC-Print Version 2.01 or higher. These 12 fields: HHA SN AMT, HHA PT AMT, HHA ST AMT, HHA OT AMT, HHA MS AMT, HHA NA AMT, HSP ROUT CARE, HSP CONT CARE, HSP GENERAL, HSP RESPITE, HSP PHYS SVC, AND HSP OTH, replace the following nine fields seen by all other provider types and Home Health Agencies or hospices who do not have PC-Print Version 2.01 or higher: DRG, DRG AMOUNT, DRG/OPER/CAP, OUTLIER, CAP OUTLIER, BLOOD DEDUCT, PROF COMPONENT, ESRD AMOUNT, and PER DIEM AMT.

Figure 2 Institutional - The Institutional ERA SC Screen

| And reasons - For Fille for Windows | | | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|---|--------|---|
| ile Edit View Admin Help | | | | | | |
| - XX SL PS BS | × x + + | A 312 | | | | |
| Nedicare National NY HOSPITAL NY ROAD NYNHERE , FL 1111000 PPI: 1234567890 | Standard In FPE: 12, FAID: 04, 00 CLM#: 1 TOB: 133 | Cernediary Rem. /31/2016 ANY II /26/2017 ANY S ANYWEI | Ittance NSURANCE IREET ERE, FL | Advice 111110000 | 1 | |
| PATIENT: BENEFICIARY HIC: 111111111A LAIM STAT: 1 | SVC FROM | A 10/23/2016 10/23/2016 | PCN: PAI MRN: PIN ICN: 217 | IENT CONTROL 1 UEDITS-000 11500400008FLA | - | |
| HARGES: 2 3028.00-WCVD/DENTED 0.00-CLAIN ADJS 3566.93-COVERED AYS/VISITS: 0=COST REPT 0=COVD/UTIL 0=MON-COVERED 0=MON-COVERED 0-WCOV VISITS | PAYMENT DAT 0.00-D0 0.00-D1 0.00-D1 0.00-D2 0.00-D2 166.00-C2 0.00-B3 54.42-C0 0.00-B3 0.00-B3 | TA: =DRG RG AMOUNT RG/OPER/CAP INE ADJ AMT UTLIER AP OUTLIER ASH DEDOCT LOOD DEDUCT DINSURANCE AT REFUND BP REDUCT | 0.9 0. 0. 0. 107. 140. 2. 0. 3192. 0. | SO=REIN BATE 00=BROF COMPONENT 00=SRD ANOINT 49=PROC CD AMOUNT 51=ALLOW/BEIN 51=SELOW/BEIN 51=SECESTRAIN 00=INTEREST 83=CONTRACT ADJ 95=PER DIEM ANT 00=PR REDUCT | R T | |
| EMARK CODES: ARC CODES: MA01 Alert: If you do not | agree with s | MA01 what we approve | ed for t | sl=NET BEIM AMT | 5 | , |
| IV DATE HCPCS APC/MIPPS MODS LICH HCPI VC Date | đua c | HARGES ALLOW/RETH | GC R.SN | AMOUNT REMARK CO | 0063 | |
| 100 10/22 | 22.000 | 142.18 0.00 | 00 97 | 162.18 | | |
| 100 10/23 | 1.000 | 200.00 84.27 | 00 45 | 74.01 | | |
| D | 101100 | | PR 2 | 40.00 | | |
| 000 10/28 000 10/28 | 2.000 | 910.05 0.05 025.00 0.05 | CD 152 | 310.00 MAC4 | | |
| ATT 11575-775 | | | | | | |



Option 3: The Bill Type Summary (BS) Screen (Institutional ERA)

Each BS screen provides a summary of claims billed for each TOB, for each provider number, and for each FY. For example, if an HHA billed 32X and 33X claims, for FY 16 and FY 17, it would receive the following four billing summaries:

| - TOB 32X for FY 16 | - TOB 32X for FY 17 |
|---------------------|---------------------|
| - TOB 33X for FY 16 | - TOB 33X for FY 17 |

You only receive a bill summary for those TOBs that were processed for this ERA. Therefore, if only 32X claims for FY 16 were processed for this ERA, the HHA only receives one bill summary.

You may switch between the different BS screens by clicking on the arrow buttons in the PC-Print software.

Figure 3 Institutional gives an example of a BS screen. We divided the screen into four separate sections for easy reference. We briefly describe the sections below.

Section 1 of the BS Screen contains a summary of the contents of the advice.

Section 2 shows a summary of the charges.

Section 3 contains a summary of the DAYS/VISITS.

Section 4 contains a summary of the PAYMENT DATA.

Figure 3 Institutional - The Institutional ERA BS Screen

| x12 test8.txt - PC Print for Window | a. | | |
|--|---|--|--------------|
| File Edit View Admin Heln | | | |
| | n erier ▲ a 45 8 8% | | |
| · Madicare Nario | nal Srandard Intermediary Semi | Tanga Iduiga | |
| ANY HOSPITAL | FPE: 12/31/2017 ANY IN: | URANCE | 1 |
| ANY ROAD | PAID: 04/26/2017 ANY ST | REET | |
| NPX: 1234567890 | TOB: 13 ANYWHEI | E, FL 111110000 | |
| *********************** | | | |
| | SUBTOTAL/TOTAL FOR BILL TYPE | | |
| CHARGESI 2 3097.18-HCVD/DENIED 0.000-CLAIM ADJ3 3354.75HCOUFEPD DAYS/VISIIS 0=COST REPT 0=COVD/UTIL 0=COVD/UTIL 0=COVD VISIIS 0=NCOV VISIIS | PAYMENT DATA: 0.00=DRG/OPER/CAP 0.00=COTLIER 0.00=COTLIER 0.00=CAP CUTLIER 183.00=CASH DEDOCT 0.00=BLOOD DEDUCT 43.33=COINSURANCE 0.00=PAT REFUND 2.77=SEQUESTRAIN | 0.000-REIM PATE 0.00-MSP PRIM PAYER 0.00-END COMPONENT 0.00-LINE ADJ 126.51-PROC CD AMOUNT 0.00-PBP REDUCT 0.00-INTEREST 3023.61-CONTRACT ADJ 0.00-PER DIEM AMT 0.00-PER REDUCT 135.98=NET DEM AMT | |
| e e un e recipio presente a | | | j present an |



Option 4: The Provider PS Screen (Institutional ERA)

The Provider PS screen provides a summary of the provider's payments on an ERA, regardless of the TOB or FYE. Therefore, if you bill multiple claims using more than one NPI, a PS screen displays for each NPI.

For a complete listing of Provider-Level Adjustment Reason Codes, refer to the WPC References.

| 1 x12 testB.txt - PC Print for Windows | - 0 - X - |
|---|--------------|
| Eile Edit View Admin Help | |
| | |
| Nedicare National Standard Remittance Advice | |
| ANY HOSPITAL ANY INSURANCE | |
| ANY ROAD ANY STREET | |
| ANIMELEE , FL IIII0000 ANIMELEE, FL IIII0000 | |
| CHECK / EFT NUMBER: 0001310978 | |
| | |
| PAYMENT TOTAL: 276.79 BILLING CYCLE: 04/26/2017 | |
| TOTAL CLAIMS: 2 TOTAL PIP CLAIMS: 0 | |
| | |
| Payer Susheas Contact information Telephone: 11/22/313 | |
| Telephone Extension: 5555 | |
| Facainile: 1112224444 | |
| Electronic Mail: | |
| Payer Technical Contact Information | |
| Telephone: | |
| Faceballe: | |
| Uniform Resource Locator (URL): HIPAATEAM@HP.NET/URL | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| ¥ | |
| Landa Antonio Di | (Annual) No. |

Figure 4 Institutional - The Institutional ERA Provider PS Screen

Reading an Institutional SPR

The Components of an Institutional SPR

Institutional SPRs are split into two sections:

- All Claims (AC) Page: These pages of the SPR provide detailed information for each individual claim, but not for the individual services included in a claim. Institutional Providers who sometimes submit claims for Part B services, for example, outpatient SNFs, may receive an RA with information regarding both Part A and Part B services. In this case, claims for Part A and Part B services are listed on separate pages of the SPR.
- Summary Page: This page of the SPR provides information that spans all the claims included in the AC section of the SPR. For example, many of the fields in this section are totals of fields on the AC pages.



The AC Page (Institutional SPR)

The AC pages of an Institutional SPR provide a line-item account for each claim represented on the RA. **Figure 5 Institutional** is an example page from the AC section of an SPR.

Section 1 of **Figure 5 Institutional** contains general MAC and provider information. The information in this section is header information for the SPR. This header information appears at the top of every page of the SPR. The only information that should change in this section for a given SPR is the page number.

Section 2 provides a list of the fields that appears for each claim.

Section 3 displays the data for each claim in the AC page of the SPR. Each claim consists of nine columns and four lines. The Institutional SPR lists claims in alphabetical order by the beneficiary's last name. This section also shows the subtotal sections on the SPR. The SPR provides subtotals for each FY. Sometimes Institutional Providers can bill Part B services. In this case, Part A and Part B (if applicable) information would appear on separate pages of the SPR with respective subtotals.

Note that claims are grouped by FY. If multiple FYs are present on a single SPR, a FY subtotal appears after each group of claims.

| 1 | INTEMEDIARY HELP DESK 1234567890 ANY HC | 1581 PHONE: 111 DSPITAL, LLC | MOUNTAIN LAKE -222-3333 EXT: 1 | DR W FAX: 100 SW 11TH ST | ANYWHERE US 1111 EXT: EM ANYWHE | 10000 AIL: RE US 11: | VER≢ 5010-I 1110000 |
|---|---|--|--|---------------------------------------|--|--|---|
| 2 | PATIENT NAME HIC NUMBER FROM DT THRU DI CLM STATUS | PATIENT CNTRL NUMBE ICN NUMBER HICHG TOB COST COVDY NCOVD | R RC REM RC REM RC REM Y RC REM | DRG# OUICD PROF COMP DRG AMI | PAID DATE: 08/21/2017 DRG OUT AMT COINSURANCE NEW TECH/ECT COVD CHGS MSP PAYMT NCOVD CHGS DEDUCTIBLES DENIED CHGS SEQUESTRATION PBP REDUCT ISLET ADD ON | REMIT#: 2 PAT REFUND ESRD NET ADJ INTEREST PRE PAY ADJ | PAGE: 1 CONTRACT ADJ PATIENT RESP PROC CD AMT NET REIMB |
| 3 | BENEFICIARY A 111111111A 05/15/2017 05/19/2017 1 | 1111 21722800041008FLA 7 111 4 4 | 45 MA02 253 1 | 603 .00 .00 | .00 .00 .00 86545.00 .00 .00 1316.00 .00 79.66 .00 | .00 .00 5.33 .00 | 81245.84 1316.00 .00 3903.50 |
| | BENEFICIARY B 222222222A 05/15/2017 05/19/2017 1 | 2222 21722800041208FLA 7 111 4 4 | 45 MA02 253 1 | 603 .00 .00 | .00 .00 .00 .00 45500.00 .00 .00 1316.00 .00 79.66 .00 | .00 .00 5.33 .00 | 40200.84 1316.00 .00 3903.50 |
| | SUBTOTAL FISCAL YEAR | - 2017 8 8 | | .00 | .00 .00 .00 .00 132045.00 .00 .00 2632.00 .00 159.32 | .00 .00 10.66 .00 | 121446.68 2632.00 .00 7807.00 |
| | SUBTOTAL PART A | 8 8 | | .00 | .00 .00 .00 .00 132045.00 .00 .00 2632.00 .00 159.32 .00 .00 | .00 .00 10.66 .00 | 121446.68 2632.00 .00 7807.00 |

Figure 5 Institutional - An Example Page from the AC Page of an Institutional SPR



The Summary Page (Institutional SPR)

The Summary Page of an Institutional SPR provides a summary of all the claims present on the SPR. **Figure 6 Institutional** is an example of a summary page from an Institutional SPR. We divided this page into six separate sections for easy viewing. We added the lines and large bold numbers to designate particular sections of the summary page.

Section 1 of the Summary Page contains information identical to the header information described in the AC section. The only information that differs in this section is the page number.

Section 2 of the Summary Page displays totals for all the claims referenced on this SPR.

Section 3 shows the fields containing Pass-Through Amounts. These fields apply to hospitals paid under a prospective payment system (PPS). Pass through amounts are cost reimbursed services Medicare pays on a biweekly basis in addition to the Claim Payment Amount for claims processed on this RA. Therefore, Medicare has paid any amounts you see in these fields in addition to any claims processed on this RA.

Section 4 contains additional payment fields, refunds, and penalty releases.

Section 5 contains withholding from payments.

Section 6 displays all provider payments on this SPR.

| INTEMEDIARY HELP DESK 1234567890 | ANY HOSPITAL, | PH , LLC | 1581 MOUNTAIN LAKE DR W NOME: 111-222-3333 EXT: FAX: 1100 SW 11TH ST | ANYWHERE PAID DATE: | EXT: 08/2: | US 111110000 EMAIL: ANYWHERE US 320603 1/2017 REMIT#: 2 | VER# 1608 PAGE: | 5010-I | 2 |
|--|-------------------|-------------|---|------------------------|---------------------------------|---|-----------------------|---------------------|---|
| CLAIM DATA: | | | PASS THRU AMOUNTS: | | | | | | |
| DAYS COST COVDY NCOVDY CHARGES | : 8 : 8 : 0 | 2 | CAPITAL : RETURN ON EQUITY : DIRECT MEDICAL EDUCATION : KIDNEY ACQUISITION : BAD DEBT : NON PHYSICIAN AMESTHETISTS: TOTAL DASS THEN | 3 | .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 | PROVIDER PAYMENT RECAP : PAYMENTS : DRG OUT AMT : INTEREST : PROC CD AMT : NET DETMB | 7 | .00 10.66 .00 | |
| COVD | : 132,045. | .00 | | | | TOTAL PASS THRU : | | .00 | |
| NCOVD DENIED | : . | .00 | PIP PAYMENT : SETTLEMENT PAYMENTS : ACCELERATED PAYMENTS : REFUNDS : | | .00 .00 .00 | PIP PAYMENTS : SETTLEMENT PYMTS : ACCELERATED PAYMENTS : REFUNDS : | | .00 .00 .00 | |
| PROF COMP | : . | .00 | PENALTY RELEASE : | Δ | .00 | PENALTY RELEASE : | | .00 | |
| MSP PAYMT DEDUCTIBLES | 2.632 | .00 | TRANS OUTP PYMT : HEMOPHILIA ADD-ON | - | .00 | TRANS OUTP PYMT : | | .00 | |
| COINSURANCE | : 2,002 | .00 | NEW TECH/ECT ADD-ON : | | .00 | NEW TECH/ECT ADD-ON : | | .00 | |
| | | | ISLET ADD-ON PAYMENT : | | .00 | ISLET ADD-ON PAYMENT : | | .00 | |
| | | | VOID/REISSUE : 935 PAYMENTS | | .00 | 935 PAYMENTS | | .00 | |
| | | | 500 PRIMATO . | | | BALANCE FORWARD : | | .00 | |
| PAT REFUND | · . | .00 | WITHHOLD FROM PAYMENTS : | | | WITHHOLD : | 1, | 563.54 | - |
| INTEREST | : 10. | . 66 | CLAIMS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: | | .00 | ADJUSTMENT TO BALANCE: | | .00 | |
| PROC CD AMT | . 121,440. | .68 | PENALTY - | 1 563 | .00 | (PAVMENTS MINUS WITHHOLD) | 6, | 254.12 | |
| NET REIMB | 7,807 | .00 | SETTLEMENT : | 1,505 | .00 | CHECK/EFT NUMBER : | EFT(| 075801 | |
| | | | THIRD PARTY PAYMENT : | F | .00 | | | | |
| | | | 935 WITHHOLDING : | J | .00 | | | | |
| | | | FEDERAL PAYMENT LEVY : | • | .00 | | | | |
| | | | NON-TAX FPLP : | | .00 | | | | D |
| | | | TOTAL WITHHOLD : | 1,563 | .54- | | | | - |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 6 Institutional - Summary Page from an Institutional SPR



Balancing an Institutional RA

Remittance balancing reconciles differences between payment amounts on the RA with the amounts you actually billed. Balancing requires that the total paid is equal to the total billed, plus or minus any payment adjustments. According to HIPAA, every electronic transaction a MAC issues must balance at the service-line, claim, and transaction levels.

General Rules for Remittance Balancing

The following ERA field completion and calculation rules apply to the corresponding fields in the SPR:

- The CHECK AMT (BPR02 field in the 835) is the sum of all claim-level payments, less any providerlevel adjustments (PLB segment in the 835).
- Any adjustment the MAC applied to the submitted charge and/or units appears in the claim or service adjustment segments with the appropriate Group Codes, CARCs, and RARCs explaining the adjustments. The same adjustment may not appear at both the claim and the service-line level of an RA. Every provider-level adjustment likewise appears in the provider-level adjustment section of the SPR (PLB segment in the 835).
- Any positive adjustments (for example, deductible paid by the beneficiary) reduce the provider's amount of payment from Medicare.
- Any negative adjustments (for example, interest on a clean claim that is paid after the 30th day from receipt) increase the amount of the payment from Medicare. Any adjustment reported with a negative sign reflects an increase in Medicare payment.

How Do I Use Transaction-Level Balancing of an Institutional RA?

Transaction-level balancing reconciles the total of all adjustments for all claims listed on the RA. Use transactionlevel balancing to reconcile the check amount with the total or sum of all provider-level adjustments.

The transaction-level balancing formula is:

Total of claim payment amounts included in this RA

- Provider-level adjustment(s) made to the claim payments

Total Payment Amount (This should match the check or EFT amount)



On an Institutional ERA

You may use the Provider Payment Summary (PS) screen to perform transaction-level balancing. This screen provides a summary of the provider's payments, shown in the PAYMENT TOTAL field, regardless of the TOB or FYE (see **Figure 7 Institutional**). This screen may also include a FINANCIAL ADJUSTMENTS field that appears only if there were financial adjustments. Use the amount in the FINANCIAL ADJUSTMENTS field to determine total provider adjustments. If claims are billed using more than one NPI, there is a separate PS screen for each NPI.

Figure 7 Institutional - The PS Screen of an Institutional ERA Used for Transaction-Level Balancing

| 1 x12 test8.txt - PC Print for Windows | |
|---|-----------|
| Eile Edit View Admin Help | |
| - = = = H = K = + = = 2; [2] | |
| Nedicare National Standard Remittance Advice ANY MOSPITAL ANY INSURANCE ANY ROAD ANY STREET ANYWHERE , FL 11110000 NFFI: 1234567890 CHECK / EFT NUMBER: 0001310978 | |
| PAYMENT JUNMARY PAYMENT TOTAL: 276.79 BILLING CYCLE: 04/26/2017 TOTAL CLAIMS: 2 TOTAL PIP CLAIMS: 0 | |
| Payer Business Contact Information Telephone Extension: 5555 Facsimile: 1112224444 Electronic Mail: Payer Technical Contact Information Telephone: Facsimile: Electronic Mail: Uniform Resource Locator (URL): HIPAATEAM@HP.NET/URL | |
| | , press (|



On an Institutional SPR

You may use the PROVIDER PAYMENT RECAP section on the Summary Page to locate fields involved in transaction-level balancing (see **Figure 8 Institutional**). To obtain the total payment amount, add all the amounts in the PAYMENTS section (including DRG OUT AMT, INTEREST, PROC CD AMT, NET REIMB, TOTAL PASS THRU, PIP PAYMENTS, SETTLEMENT PYMTS, ACCELERATED PAYMENTS, REFUNDS, PENALTY RELEASE, TRANS OUTP PYMT, HEMOPHILIA ADD-ON, NEW TECH/ECT ADD-ON, VOID/REISSUE, BALANCE FORWARD, WITHHOLD, and ADJUSTMENT TO BALANCE). The WITHHOLD field is a negative amount which represents the total provider adjustments, found in **Figure 8 Institutional** Section 5. This should result in the amount of the provider's reimbursement check (NET PROVIDER PAYMENT in **Figure 8 Institutional** Section 6).

Figure 8 Institutional - The Summary Page of an Institutional SPR Used for Transaction-Level Balancing

| 1234567890 | ANY | HOSPITAL, LLC | 1100 SW 11T | H ST PAI | ID DATE: 08/21 | ANYWHERE US 33 /2017 REMIT#: | 206036 2 | 08 PAGE: 2 |
|--------------|------------|----------------------|---------------------------|-------------|----------------|---------------------------------|-------------|---------------|
| | | | SUMMARY | _ | | | | |
| JUNIN DAIA: | | | CADITAL | 1.01 | 0.0 | PROVIDED DAYMENT RECAR | 26 | |
| DAVP | 12 | 20 March 19 | DETUDN ON FOULTY | | .00 | FROVIDER FAIMENT RECAF | • | 1 |
| COST | | . • | DIRECT MEDICAL EDUCATION | | .00 | DAVMENTS | | |
| COUDY | | | VIDNEY ACOULSITION | | .00 | DRC OUT NOT | ÷. | 00 |
| NCOUDY | | ° 6 | RIDNEI ACQUISITION | 1.2 | .00 | INTEDECT | | 10.66 |
| NCOVDI | | (X) (****** | NON DEVELOTAN AMPORTMETTO | Te: J | .00 | DROC CD ANT | : | 10.00 |
| WADGES | 10 | | TOTAL DASS TUDI | | .00 | NET DETME | : | 7 907 00 |
| COVD | 13 | 122 045 00 | TOTAL PASS TIKO | | .00 | TOTAL BASS TUDU | 8 | 7,007.00 |
| NCOVD | ÷. | 132,045.00 | DID DAVMENT | S | 0.0 | DID DAVMENTS | ÷. | .00 |
| DENTED | | .00 | SETTLEMENT DAVMENTS | | .00 | CETTIEMENT DVMTC | ÷. | .00 |
| DENIED | 54 | | ACCELEDATED DAVAGENTS | | .00 | ACCELEDATED DAVAEN | | .00 |
| | | | DEFINIDE | | .00 | DEFINIDE | | .00 |
| DOF COMP | 100 | 0.0 | DENNITY DELEASE | | .00 | DENALTY DELEASE | | .00 |
| ACD DAVMT | ÷. | .00 | TRANS OUTD DVWT | 2 | .00 | TRANS OUTR DYNT | 1 | .00 |
| SP PAINI | | 2 622 00 | IRANS OUTP FINI | | .00 | IRANS OUTP PIMI | | .00 |
| COTNEUDANCE | - 5 | 2,032.00 | NEW TECH (FOT ADD ON | 31 mar | .00 | NEW TROUVECT ADD ON | | .00 |
| JOINSURANCE | ÷. | .00 | NEW ILCH/ECI ADD-ON | 1 | .00 | NEW TECH/ECT ADD-O | | .00 |
| | | | ISLEI ADD-ON PAIMENI | :4 | .00 | ISLEI ADD-ON PAIME | NT : | .00 |
| | | | OSS DAVMENTS | | .00 | 035 DAVMENTS | • | .00 |
| | | | 555 FRIMENIS | 3 | .00 | BIINCE POPULAD | | .00 |
| DAT DEFIND | | 0.0 | MITUHOLD FROM DIVMENTS | | | BALANCE FORWARD | ÷ | 1 562 54 |
| NI REFUND | 1 | 10.66 | CLAIMS ACCOUNTS DECENTAR | : | 00 | AD THETHENT TO BALL | 1012 | 1,565.54- |
| CONTRACT ADT | | 10.00 | ACCELEDATED DAWRING | | .00 | NET DROUTDER DAVAGE | TT . | 6 254 12 |
| DOG CD NET | - <u>8</u> | 121,440.00 | ACCELERATED PRIMENTS | | 1 5 60 54 | NEI PROVIDER PAIME | IOT DI | 0,239.12 |
| TT DETME | 1 | 7 807 00 | PERALI I | | 1,003.54- | (PAIMENIS MINUS WITH | 1000) | FFT0075901 |
| NCI REIPID | | 1,001.00 | JUIDE BARTY DAVANTE | | .00 | CHECK/EFI NORDER | | EF100/5001 |
| | | | INIKU PAKII PAIMENI | 3.5 | .00 | | | |
| | | | APPILIATED WITHHOLDING | | .00 | | | |
| | | | FEDERAL DAVAGENT LEVY | | .00 | | | |
| | | | NON-TAX FRID | | .00 | | | |
| | | | TOTAL NITHNOLD | | 1 562 54 | | | |
| | | | IOTAL WITHHOLD | 345 | 1,003.04- | | | |



Table 1 Institutional shows the figures and fields that you can use to balance the SPR shown in **Figure 8 Institutional** at the transaction level.

| DOLLAR AMOUNT | FIELD USED FOR BALANCING THIS SPR | DESCRIPTION |
|------------------|-----------------------------------|---|
| 7,817.66 | NET REIMB plus interest | Total of claim payment amounts. |
| 1,563.54 | WITHHOLD | Total Provider-Level Adjustments |
| 6,254.12 | NET PROVIDER PAYMENT | The Check/EFT Amount. This amount equals the total of claim payment amounts minus the total provider-level adjustments. Therefore, this SPR balances at the transaction level. |

Table 1 Institutional - Example Transaction-Level Balancing an Institutional RA

Claim-Level Balancing an Institutional RA

Claim-level balancing encompasses the entire claim for one beneficiary. You may use claim-level balancing to settle an individual claim. Claim-level balancing subtracts the sum of all adjustments applied to a claim from the submitted charges for a claim. You may not take the same adjustment at both the service-line and the claim levels.

The claim-level balancing formula is:

Total submitted charge for this claim
 Monetary adjustment amounts applied to this claim
 Paid Amount for this Claim



On an Institutional ERA

On an Institutional ERA, you can find all the fields you need for claim-level balancing in the Payment Data Section of the Single Claim (SC) screen (see **Figure 9 Institutional** Section 4). The DRG AMOUNT field is the total submitted charge for the claim, and you may find the paid amount for the claim in the NET REIM AMT field. All the other fields in this section of the SC screen constitute the monetary adjustment amounts applied to this claim portion of the equation. These fields include DRG/OPER/CAP, LINE ADJ AMT, OUTLIER, CAP OUTLIER, CASH DEDUCT, BLOOD DEDUCT, COINSURANCE, PAT REFUND, MSP LIAB MET, REIM RATE, MSP PRIM PAYER, PROF COMPONENT, ESRD AMOUNT, PROC CD AMOUNT, ALLOW/REIM, G/R AMOUNT, INTEREST, CONTRACT ADJ, and PER DIEM AMT.

When service-line payment information is present, adjustments appear either at the claim level or the service-line level, but not in both. When specific service-line details are present (these appear in **Figure 9 Institutional** Section 6), the claim-level balancing includes balancing the total claim charge to the sum of the related service charges.



Figure 9 Institutional - The SC Screen of an Institutional ERA Used for Claim-Level Balancing



On an Institutional SPR

To perform claim-level balancing on an Institutional SPR, subtract all adjustments (which are in DRG OUT AMT, NEW TECH, MSP PAYMT, DEDUCTIBLES, COINSURANCE, DENIED CHGS, PAT REFUND, ESRD NET ADJ, INTEREST, PRE PAY ADJ, CONTRACT ADJ, PER DIEM RTE, and PROC CD AMT) from the COVD CHGS field. The resulting amount should equal the NET REIMB (see **Figure 10 Institutional**). These amounts are on the AC Page of an SPR in **Figure 10 Institutional** Section 3.

Figure 10 Institutional - The AC Page of an Institutional SPR Used for Claim-Level Balancing

| PATIENT NAME HIC NUMBER FROM DT THRU DT CLM STATUS | PATIEN ICN NU COST | NT CNTRL IMBER HICHG COVDY | NUMBER TOB NCOVDY | RC RC RC | REM REM REM | DRG# OUTCD PROF COMP DRG AMT | DRG OUT AMT NEW TECH/ECT MSP PAYMT DEDUCTIBLES SEQUESTRATION PBP REDUCT | COINSURANCE COVD CHGS NCOVD CHGS DENIED CHGS | PAT REFUND ESRD NET ADJ INTEREST PRE PAY ADJ | CONTRACT ADJ PATIENT RESP PROC CD AMT NET REIMB |
|---|--------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------|-------------------|---------------------------------------|--|---|---|--|
| BENEFICIARY A | 1111 | | | 45 | MA02 | 603 | .00 | .00 | .00 | 81245.84 |
| 111111111A | 217228 | 0004100 | SFLA | 253 | | | .00 | 86545.00 | .00 | 1316.00 |
| 05/15/2017 05/19/2017 | | | 111 | 1 | | .00 | .00 | .00 | 5.33 | .00 |
| 1 | 4 | 4 | | | | .00 | 1316.00 79.66 .00 | .00 | .00 | 3903.50 |
| BENEFICIARY B | 2222 | | | 45 | MA02 | 603 | .00 | .00 | .00 | 40200.84 |
| 222222222A | 217228 | 0004120 | SFLA | 253 | | | .00 | 45500.00 | .00 | 1316.00 |
| 05/15/2017 05/19/2017 | | | 111 | 1 | | .00 | .00 | .00 | 5.33 | .00 |
| 1 | 4 | 4 | | | | .00 | 1316.00 79.66 .00 | .00 | .00 | 3903.50 |
| SUBTOTAL FISCAL YEAR - | 2017 | | | | | | .00 | .00 132045.00 | .00 | 121446.68 2632.00 |
| | | | | | | .00 | .00 | .00 | 10.66 | .00 |
| | 8 | 8 | | | | .00 | 2632.00 159.32 .00 | .00 | .00 | 7807.00 |
| SUBTOTAL PART A | | | | | | | .00 | .00 | .00 | 121446.68 |
| | | | | | | | .00 | 132045.00 | .00 | 2632.00 |
| | | | | | | .00 | .00 | .00 | 10.66 | .00 |
| | 8 | 8 | | | | .00 | 2632.00 159.32 .00 .00 | .00 | .00 | 7807.00 |



Table 2 Institutional shows the figures that you can use to balance a claim from the SPR shown in **Figure 10 Institutional**.

Table 2 Institutional - Example Claim-Level Balancing Fields

| DOLLAR AMOUNT | FIELD USED FOR BALANCING THIS CLAIM | DESCRIPTION |
|------------------|--|---|
| 86,545.00 | COVD CHGS | Total submitted charge for this claim. |
| -81,245.84 | CONTRACT ADJ | A claim-level adjustment due to a contractual agreement between the payer and the payee. |
| 5,299.16 | NET REIMB | The paid amount for this claim. This amount equals the total claim payment amount minus the total claim- level adjustments. Therefore, this claim balances. |

Service-Line-Level Balancing an Institutional RA

Service-line-level balancing allows you to reconcile totals for service-line entries on individual claims. Most Institutional Providers do not perform service-line-level balancing.

The service-line-level balancing formula is:

Submitted charge for this service

- Monetary adjustment amount applied to this service

Paid Amount for this Service



On an Institutional ERA

To complete service-line-level balancing, use the SC screen. In **Figure 11 Institutional**, the service-line fields are located in Section 6 of the SC screen. You will find submitted service-line charges under the CHARGES field header, adjustments under the ALLOW/REIM field header, and the paid amount for the service under the AMOUNT header. CMS only requires service-line-level balancing when Institutional Providers bill Part B services.

Figure 11 Institutional - The SC Screen of an Institutional ERA Used for Service-Line-Level Balancing



On an Institutional SPR

Since HIPAA does not cover the SPR, service-line information may not appear on some Institutional SPRs like it does on an ERA. The SPR shows the same segments, fields, and codes that are on the ERA that help you to make sure that the 835 is balanced at three levels: transaction, claim, and service-line. You may refer to the previous section regarding service-line-level balancing of an Institutional ERA for an idea of how this may be performed.



READING A PROFESSIONAL REMITTANCE ADVICE (RA)

Viewing the information in an ERA:

You can view and print the information in an ERA using special translator software. The ASC X12N 835 format is meant for electronic transfers only. Professional Providers can get free translator MREP software for viewing HIPAA 835 files from their MAC. You can use either the free MREP software or purchase other proprietary translator software. If you use proprietary software to view and print ERAs, you must confirm that the software meets HIPAA-compliant ASC X12N 835 format standards and includes required and situational data elements that comply with Medicare guidelines.

The MREP software allows you to view and print the ERA, to run special reports and to search the ERA to find information easily. You may use the MREP software by importing 835s received from your MAC. Once imported, you may print these files in a format similar to a Standard Paper Remittance (SPR), or view them directly in the MREP software. In addition, you can save these files in your system for any length of time as you need.

Presentation of ERA information Using MREP software:

The entire remittance report allows you to view or print your remittance information quickly in a format similar to an SPR.

A tabbed information view allows six selections from a particular ERA:

- 1. Select specific claims
- 2. View and print claim information for the selected claims
- 3. View and print summary information for the entire ERA
- 4. View ERA data in loops and segments
- 5. Search claims for specific information
- 6. View a glossary of all CARCs and RARCs that appear on the ERA

Special Reports provides information specific to:

- · Claims containing adjusted service lines
- · Coordination of Benefits (COB) and Non-COB claims
- · Deductible and coinsurance service lines
- Denied service lines
- Other adjustments

To print quickly from an 835, you can use the Report function, as shown in **Figure 1 Professional**. When you select the Entire Remittance report, options to view or print a paper remittance (for the 835 currently highlighted in the upper portion of the screen) appear.



Figure 1 Professional - Using the Entire Remittance Report in the MREP Software to Print an SPR

| inport report | ▼ Archive Rest | ore X Dele | te 🍳 Se | earch 🔤 P | rint List | | | | | |
|---|---|-------------|----------|------------|-----------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|----|
| yer Name Adjuste | d Service Lines | Check D | heck/E | Check/E | Claims | Check/EF | T Number | Version | Filename | |
| EA INSUR. COB / N | on-COB Claims | 09/01/17 | 481.71 | EFT | 7 | 0514010 | 122654 | 005010X22 | AREA INS | UR |
| GNA GOVE. Deducti Denied MSP / N | ble / COINS Service Lines Service Lines on-MSP Claims | 08/31/17 | 6457.69 | EFT | 33 | 0514010 | 121642 | 005010X22 | CIGNA GOV | |
| Claim Li Other A | djustments • | mit Summarv | . | Data View | | Search | Gloss | arv | | |
| ame Entire R | emittance | 1 | CN | Billed Amo | unt P | aid Amount | From Date | To Date | ASG | |
| Doe, Sally | 1122331 | 171507 | 00001000 | -910 | .50 | -402.53 | 2/10/2017 | 2/10/2017 | Y | |
| Doe, Sally | 7722337 | 171507 | 00001000 | 910 | .50 | 587.28 | 2/10/2017 | 2/10/2017 | Y | |
| Miller, Mary | 5432109 | 172177 | 00001000 | 38 | 3.20 | 12.50 | 8/12/2017 | 8/12/2017 | Y | |
| | 6655443 | 172207 | 00001000 | 237 | .60 | 159.36 | 7/28/2017 | 7/28/2017 | Y | |
| Right, Samuel | 9123456 | 172307 | 00001000 | 406 | 5.20 | 32.67 | 8/10/2017 | 8/10/2017 | Y | |
| Right, Samuel Jones, Joe | 5125450 | | 00001010 | 148 | .80 | 92.42 | 8/9/2017 | 8/9/2017 | Y | |
| Right, Samuel Jones, Joe Jones, Joe | 9123456 | 172307 | 00001010 | | | | | | | |

Please note that the options in this booklet provide high level overviews of the screens available for the RAs. For more information, refer to the Medicare Claims Processing Manual, <u>Chapter 22</u> (Remittance Advice), for complete details of headings, fields, and codes used in the RAs. The appendix of the <u>Medicare Remit Easy Print User's</u> <u>Guide</u> provides the information necessary to see and understand the mapping of data for each report.

The differences that currently exist between SPRs received from MACs and paper remittances MREP software generates are:

- The totals section:
 - The paper remittance from MREP software includes totals for all claims, assigned and unassigned
- The handling of adjusted claims:
 - Paper remittance from MREP software mirrors the 835 by showing the adjusted and the replacement claim
- The bulletin board section:
 - MREP software omits this section because it is not included in the HIPAA-compliant 835 format

Future revisions to the 835 may result in additional differences, as not all 835 revisions may occur in exactly the same manner in the SPR as they do in the paper remittances from MREP software.



MLN Booklet

Viewing Remittance Information using the MREP Software

Figure 2 Professional shows the MREP software after the provider has imported several 835s.

Figure 2 Professional Section 1 provides a list of imported 835s. When you select an 835 from this list, information about that 835 appears in **Figure 2 Professional** Section 2. The six tabs that you use to view remittance information are discussed on the following pages.



Figure 2 Professional - The MREP Software with Multiple 835s Ready for Viewing

| Import P Rep | ort 🔻 🔺 Arch | ve <u>R</u> Res | tore 🗶 De | elete Q S | earch | List | | | |
|------------------|----------------------------|---------------------|----------------------|-------------------|---------------|-----------------------|--------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|
| Payer Name Payee | Name | Payee ID | Check D | Check/E | Check/E C | laims Check/E | FT Number | Version | Filename |
| AREA INSUR ACME | PHYSICIANS I ERSTONE ME | 12345678 NPI4497 | 09/01/17 08/31/17 | 481.71 6457.69 | EFT | 7 051401 33 051401 | 0122654 0121642 | 005010X22 005010X22 | AREA INSUR CIGNA GOV. |
| Claim List | Claim Detail | | Remit Summa | irv | Data View | Search | Gloss | arv | |
| Name | | ACNT | | ICN | Billed Amount | Paid Amount | From Date | To Date | ASG |
| Doe, Sally | | 7722337 | 1715 | 700001000 | -910.50 | -402.53 | 2/10/2017 | 2/10/2017 | Y |
| Doe, Sally | | 7722337 | 1715 | 0700001000 | 910.50 | 587.28 | 2/10/2017 | 2/10/2017 | Y |
| Miller, Mary | | 5432109 | 1721 | 7700001000 | 38.20 | 12.50 | 8/12/2017 | 8/12/2017 | Y |
| Right, Samuel | | 6655443 | 1722 | 0700001000 | 237.60 | 159.36 | 7/28/2017 | 7/28/2017 | Y |
| Jones, Joe | | 9123456 | 1723 | 0700001000 | 406.20 | 32.67 | 8/10/2017 | 8/10/2017 | Y |
| Jones, Joe | | 9123456 | 1723 | 0700001010 | 148.80 | 92.42 | 8/9/2017 | 8/9/2017 | Y |
| Smith, Robert | | 2151983 | 1723 | 0700002000 | 40.00 | 0.00 | 8/12/2017 | 8/12/2017 | Y |



The Claim List tab (**Figure 3 Professional**) provides the ability to view information for any number of claims within an 835. After selecting an 835 from the top window, select individual claims from this tab. Then select claims by clicking on the check box to the left of each claim. The Claim Detail tab will display information only for the claims you selected.

| Import | P Report 🔻 🔺 Arc | hive <u> R</u> Res | tore 🗶 De | elete 🔍 S | earch Print | List | | | | |
|---------------|-------------------|--------------------|-------------|------------|---------------|-------------|------------|-----------|----------|----|
| Payer Name | Payee Name | Payee ID | Check D | Check/E | Check/E | laims Check | EFT Number | Version | Filename | |
| AREA INSUR | ACME PHYSICIANS I | 12345678 | 09/01/17 | 481.71 | EFT | 7 05140 | 10122654 | 005010X22 | AREA INS | UR |
| CIGNA GOVE | CORNERSTONE ME | NPI4497 | 08/31/17 | 6457.69 | EFT | 33 05140 | 10121642 | 005010X22 | CIGNA GC | ov |
| Claim List | Claim Deta | 1 | Remit Summa | arv | Data View | Search | Gloss | sarv | | |
| Name | | ACNT | 101 | ICN | Billed Amount | Paid Amount | From Date | To Date | ASG | |
| Doe, Sally | | 7722337 | 17150 | 0700001000 | -910.50 | -402.53 | 2/10/2017 | 2/10/2017 | Y | |
| Doe, Sally | | 7722337 | 17150 | 0700001000 | 910.50 | 587.28 | 2/10/2017 | 2/10/2017 | Y | |
| Miller, Mary | | 5432109 | 17217 | 7700001000 | 38.20 | 12.50 | 8/12/2017 | 8/12/2017 | Y | |
| 🗌 Right, Samu | lel | 6655443 | 17220 | 0700001000 | 237.60 | 159.36 | 7/28/2017 | 7/28/2017 | Y | |
| Jones, Joe | | 9123456 | 17230 | 0700001000 | 406.20 | 32.67 | 8/10/2017 | 8/10/2017 | Y | |
| Jones, Joe | | 9123456 | 17230 | 0700001010 | 148.80 | 92.42 | 8/9/2017 | 8/9/2017 | Y | |
| Smith Robe | ert | 2151983 | 17230 | 0700002000 | 40.00 | 0.00 | 8/12/2017 | 8/12/2017 | Y | |

Figure 3 Professional - The Claim List Tab





The Claim Detail tab (**Figure 4 Professional**) shows you detailed information for the claims you selected in the Claim List tab. You may use this tab to view or print information for specific claims you want to forward to other payers for secondary/tertiary payment. Glossary information, including Group Codes, CARCs, and RARCs, appears for only those claims you selected in the Claim List tab.

The information in the Claim Detail tab appears in a format similar to an SPR. However, total information across all selected claims does not appear the way it does at the end of an SPR. For a description of how to read the detailed claim information in this tab, refer to sections titled Header Information and Assigned Claims – Claim Level Information through Assigned Claims – Adjustments Line of this Booklet (See **Figure 11 Professional** and **Figure 12 Professional**)

| 🕞 Medicare R | emit EasyPrint v4.6 | | | | | | | | | _ [] ? |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------|----------------------|-------------------|----------|----------------|--------------------------------|-------------|--------------------|----------|
| File Tab View | w Report Search T | ools Help | | | | | | | | |
| Import | P Report - Arch | nive <u>R</u> Re | store 🕱 De | elete 🭳 s | earch | Print List | | | | |
| Payer Name | Payee Name | Payee ID | Check D | Check/E | Check/E | . Claims | Check/EFT Num | ber Version | Filer | name |
| AREA INSUR CIGNA GOVE | ACME PHYSICIANS I CORNERSTONE ME | 12345678 NPI4497 | 09/01/17 08/31/17 | 481.71 6457.69 | EFT | 7 33 | 0514010122654 0514010121642 | 005010 | X22 ARE X22 CIG | A INSUR |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Claim List | Claim Detai | | Remit Summa | irv | Data Vie | w Í s | Search | Glossarv | | ÷ |
| CHECK/EFT #: REND-PROV S | : 0514010122654 SERV-DATE POS PD-F | ROC/MODS | PD-N(| OS BI | LLED | ALLOWED | DEDUCT | COINS | PROV-PD | |
| RARC | | | SUB-NC |)S SUB- | PROC | GRP/CARC | CARC-AMT | ADJ-QTY | BS | |
| NAME:Miller, | , Mary MI | D:22222222 | 2A ACNT:5 | 5432109 | | ICN:17217 | 700001000 ASG: | Y MOA:MA01 | U setul | - |
| c |)812 081217 12 A431 | OKX | 2.00 | 10 1 | 5.40 | 13.12 co-45 | 13.12 2.28 | 0.00 | 0.00 | |
| c | 0812 081217 12 A433 | 8KX | 2.00 | 20 21 | 2.80 | 22.80 | 7.17 | 3.13 | 12.50 | |
| PT RESP | 23.42 CARC | 2.28 | CLAIM TOTAL | JS 0 00 | 3.20 | 35.92 | 20.29 | 3.13 | 12.50 | |
| CORRECTED PF | CIORITY PAYER INFO | : BC/BS BCBSRN | OF ROCHESTE | 2R-150 E | LAIL F | IDING UNARGE | 5 0.00 | NE.1 | 12.50 | |
| Print | 🔍 Zoom In 🔍 | Zoom Out | Reset Zo | moc | | | | | | Glossary |
| | | | | | | | | | | 0/0/20 |

Figure 4 Professional - The Claim Detail Tab



The Remit Summary Tab

The Remit Summary tab displays totals for all claims in this RA. These are the totals that appear in the totals section at the end of a paper remittance the MREP generates. Notice a difference in the way totals for the entire RA appear on the SPR (**Figure 5 Professional**) and on the Remit Summary tab (**Figure 6 Professional**) in the MREP software. Although most of the information in this tab is the same as the information in the TOTALS section of the SPR, the formatting differs.

Figure 5 Professional - Totals as Shown on the SPR

| TOTALS: | # of CLAIMS | BILLED | ALLOWED AMT | DEDUCT | COINS | TOTAL RC AMT | PROV PD | PROV ADJ AMT | CHECK | |
|---------|----------------|----------|----------------|---------|-------|-----------------|-------------|-----------------|--------|--|
| | 5 | 321.00 | 211.47 | 0.34 | 39.88 | 109.53 | 161.25 | 25.44 | 135.81 | |
| PROVI | DER ADJ | DETAILS: | PLB REAS | ON CODE | FCN | | HIC | AMOUNT 15.44 | | |
| | | | F | В | 02021 | 99306770 | 99999999999 | 10.00 | | |

Figure 6 Professional - The Remit Summary Tab

| | P Report - A Arc | hive Res | tore X De | elete Q S | earch | rint List | | | | |
|--------------------------|--|---|----------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|-----------|--------------------|------------------|------------------------|-------------------------|
| Payer Name | Payee Name | Payee ID | Check D | Check/E | Check/E | Claims | Check/El | T Number | Version | Filename |
| AREA INSUR CIGNA GOVE | ACME PHYSICIANS I CORNERSTONE ME | 12345678 NPI4497 | 09/01/17 08/31/17 | 481.71 6457.69 | EFT EFT | 7 33 | 0514010 0514010 | 122654 121642 | 005010X22 005010X22 | AREA INSUR CIGNA GOV |
| China Lint | | | Domit Cumma | 101 | Contra Marci | f | Connet | 1 01-0 | 1 | |
| Claim List | Claim Deta | IT DED DA VMENT | CIDA(ADV DEL | II V | Data view | 005010822 | Search | GIOS | sarv I | |
| OTAL CLAIMS | : 7 BILLED AMOUN TOTAL REASON TOTAL ALLOWE | CODE ADJUSTR O AMOUNT RANCE AMOUNT | ENT AMOUNT | 870. 213. 912. 120. | 80 14 76 43 | | | | | |
| | TOTAL DEDUCT | THTE AMOUNT | | | 23 | | | | | |
| | TOTAL DEDUCT | IBLE AMOUNT | - | 481. | 70 | | | | | |
| | TOTAL DEDUCT TOTAL PAID T TOTAL INTERE TOTAL CHECK/ | IBLE AMOUNT D PROVIDER ST AMOUNT EFT AMOUNT | 3 | 481. 0. 481. | 70 01 71 | | | | | |
| PLB ADJ DETAII | TOTAL DEDUCT TOTAL PAID T TOTAL INTERE TOTAL CHECK/ | IBLE AMOUNT O PROVIDER ST AMOUNT EFT AMOUNT OTHER IDENTIF | IER | 481. 0. 481. | 70 01 71 | AM | IOUNT | | | |



The Data View Tab

The Data View tab (**Figure 7 Professional**) allows you to view the loops and segments of the ASC X12N 835 005010A1 format. For more information about how to read the loops and segments of the 835, refer to the "ASC X12N 835 Implementation Guide: Health Care Claim Payment/Advice", available for purchase at http://www.wpc-edi.com/products/healthcare/4010/combined-guides/.

| 🕞 Medicare R | emit EasyP | rint v4.6 | | | | | | | | | | × |
|--------------------------|---|--------------|------------------------------|----------------------|-------------------|----------------|------------|----------------------|----------------|------------------------|-------------------------|------|
| File Tab Viev | Report | Search To | ools Help ve <u>R</u> Res | store 🕱 D | elete 🔍 S | earch | Print List | | | | | |
| Payer Name | Payee Nam | e | Payee ID | Check D | Check/E | Check/E | Claims | Check/EFT | Number | Version | Filename | _ |
| AREA INSUR CIGNA GOVE | AREA INSUR ACME PHYSICIANS I CIGNA GOVE CORNERSTONE ME | | 12345678 NPI4497 | 09/01/17 08/31/17 | 481.71 6457.69 | EFT EFT | 7 33 | 05140101 05140101 | 22654 21642 | 005010X22 005010X22 | AREA INSUR CIGNA GOV | |
| Claim List | 1 | Claim Detail | | Remit Summa | arv | Data View | | Search | Glos | isarv | | |
| Loop & Segme | nt | | Field ID | | Description | | | Value | | | | - |
| HDRB : ST | | | 01 | | Transaction | Set Identifier | Code | 835 | | | | |
| HDRB : BPR | | | 02 | | Transaction | Set Control | lumber | 0001 | | | | |
| HDRB : TRN | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| HDRB : REF | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| HDRB : REF | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| HDRB : DTM | | | - | | | | | | | | | |
| 1000A:N1 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 1000A : N3 | | | - | | | | | | | | | 4 |
| 1000A : N4 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 1000A : REF | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1000A : PER | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 1000B : N1 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 1000B : N3 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 1000B : N4 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 2000 : LY | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 2100 . CLP | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2100 · NM1 | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | - |
| Commont count | >> 205 | | | | | | | | | | 0/9/2 | 2017 |

Figure 7 Professional - The Data View Tab



The Search Tab

The Search tab (**Figure 8 Professional**) provides the ability to search for specific information within claims on an RA. You may search using the following fields:

| Adjusted Lines | Health Insurance Claim Number (HICN) |
|--|--|
| Beneficiary Account Number (as assigned by the provider) | Internal Control Number (ICN) |
| Beneficiary Last Name | National Drug Code (NDC) |
| COB Claims | Non-COB Claims |
| Coinsurance Lines | Other Adjustments |
| Deductible Lines | Procedure Code |
| Deductible/Coinsurance Lines | Rendering Provider Number (includes the NPI and legacy provider numbers) |
| Denied Lines | Service Date |

Once the search is complete, the software provides a list of claims that matched the search criteria. Click on the **Claim Detail** button at the bottom of the screen to select those claims automatically and view them in the **Claim Detail** tab.

Figure 8 Professional - The Search Tab

| 🕞 Medicare R | emit EasyPrin | t v4.6 | | | | | | | | | × |
|---|---|-----------------|---------------------|----------------------|-------------------|-----------|-------------|--------------------------------|------------------------|-------------------------|-------|
| File Tab View | Report S | Archi | ve <u>R</u> Res | store 🕱 D | elete 🭳 S | earch 🛄 | Print List | | | | |
| Payer Name | Payee Name | | Payee ID | Check D | Check/E | Check/E | Claims | Check/EFT Number | Version | Filename | |
| AREA INSUR CIGNA GOVE | ACME PHYSIC CORNERSTOR | IANS I NE ME | 12345678 NPI4497 | 09/01/17 08/31/17 | 481.71 6457.69 | EFT | 7 33 | 0514010122654 0514010121642 | 005010X22 005010X22 | AREA INSUR CIGNA GOV | |
| Claim List | 0 | aim Detail | 1 | Remit Summ | arv | Data View | | Search Glos | ssarv | | |
| Adjusted Lines Adjusted Lines Bene Account Bene Last Nam CARC COB Claims Coinsurance Li Deductible Lin Deductible/Coi | Number ne ines es ins Lines | | | | | | i Exact Mat | tch C Begins With | C Contains | | Sear |
| Print Resu | lts Clam | Detai | | | | | | | | 9/8/ | /2017 |



The Glossary Tab

The Glossary tab (**Figure 9 Professional**) provides a list of all Group Codes, RARCs, CARCs, and Provider-Level Adjustment Reason Codes that appear on any claim in the ERA. Your MAC will notify you of necessary updates for the MREP software to accommodate code set changes. File updates are available three times a year. You can sign up with your MAC to be notified automatically when updates are available.

| Medicare R | emit EasyPrint v4.6 | ook Help | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---|-----------------------------------|----------------------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-----------|---|---|-----------------------------------|
| Import | P Report V Arch | ive Res | store 🕱 De | elete 🭳 S | earch | rint List | | | |
| Payer Name | Payee Name | Payee ID | Check D | Check/E | Check/E | Claims | Check/EFT Number | Version | Filename |
| AREA INSUR CIGNA GOVE | ACME PHYSICIANS I CORNERSTONE ME | 12345678 NPI4497 | 09/01/17 08/31/17 | 481.71 6457.69 | EFT EFT | 7 33 | 0514010122654 0514010121642 | 005010X22 005010X22 | AREA INSUR CIGNA GOV |
| | 1 | | | 1 | | 6 | | | |
| Claim List | Claim Detail | | Remit Summa | arv | Data View | | Search GIO | ssary | |
| { 2 (BS) } - Add { 3 (BS) } - Bile | litional Information Requi | ired - Missing, by Health Plar | /Invalid/Incom | nplete Data fr | rom Submitted | Claim | | | |
| { 42 } - Charge | s exceed our fee schedu | ile or maximu | um allowable a | imount. <mark>(</mark> Use | CARC 45) | | | | |
| { 45 } - Charge (navments and | exceeds fee schedule/m contractual reductions) | naximum allow | wable or contr sulted from pr | racted/legislat rior_naver(s) a | ted fee arrange adjudication. (L | ment. Not | e: This must not duplicat th Group Codes PR or C | te provider adjustr O depending upor | ment amounts n liability) This |
| 🔍 Zoom In | Soom Out 🕂 Re | set View 🧧 | Codes | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | 0.10.1 |

Figure 9 Professional - The Glossary Tab



Generating Special Reports Using the MREP Software

| Adjusted Service Lines Report | Shows claims that have a status of 22 (reversal of previous payment). This report does not show the adjustment claim that reflects the corrected dollar amounts, but shows only the negative amount that the reversed claim provides to negate the original claim. |
|--|--|
| COB Claims and Non-COB Claims Reports | Shows all claims that your MAC has forwarded to an additional payer(s). Alternatively, the Non-COB Claims report shows all claims that the MAC did not forward to an additional payer. These reports allow you to quickly view claims by their COB status. You can access these two reports from the COB / Non- COB Claims option under the Report menu in the MREP software. |
| Deductible and Coinsurance Service Lines Reports | The MREP software provides the following three reports for viewing deductible and coinsurance services lines: 1. The Deductible Service Lines report lists all service lines that have a deductible amount 2. The Coinsurance Service Lines report lists all service lines that have a coinsurance amount 3. The Deductible/Coinsurance Service Lines report is a combination of the first two reports, and lists all service lines that have deductible or coinsurance amounts associated with them. These reports allow you to quickly view those claims for which beneficiaries (or other insurer, if applicable) must pay coinsurance or some portion of the deductible. You may access these three reports from the Deductible / COINS Service Lines option under the Report menu in the MREP software. |
| The Denied Service Lines Report | Shows all service lines that have an allowed amount equal to zero and are associated with a claim that does not have a claim status 22 (reversal of previous payment). |



Generating Special Reports Using the MREP Software Continued

| The Other Adjustments Report | Shows those claims that include some type of adjustment. This report shows claims that have late filing and interest, and remittances that have withholding and forwarding balances. |
|--|---|
| Fields Appearing on MREP Special Reports | Figure 10 Professional contains an example of one of the special reports you can generate from the MREP software. The special reports share the same general formatting and have many of the same fields. |

Fields Appearing on MREP Special Reports

Figure 10 Professional contains an example of one of the special reports that you can generate from the MREP software. The special reports share the same general formatting and have many of the same fields.

| | Print p | reviev | N | | | | | | | | | | | | _ 🗆 🗙 | j |
|----|---------|--------|-------|---|------------------------------|-----|-------------------|---------------|------|--------|---------|----------------|--------------------|------------|----------|---|
| 8. | 0 - C | | • | Close | | | | | | | | | | Pa | ge 1÷ | I |
| | 110 | | | 202 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 - 204 | | | | | | | | | | | ^ | |
| | Carries | e : | AREA | INSURANCE | | | Generated: 9/8/20 | 17 2:50:38 PM | ort | | | | | | | |
| | Payee 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | l |
| | Payee 1 | Nane: | ACME | PHYSICIANS INC. | | | | | | | | | | | | l |
| | Chk Dat | te: | 09/01 | /17 | | | | | | | | | | | | l |
| | Chk/EFT | T # : | 05140 | 10122654 | | | | | | | | | | | | l |
| | Seq # | Prove | /NPI | ACNT # / Name | ICN/MID | Let | Service Date (s) | Prod/Serv | ID | Billed | Allowed | Deduct | Coins | Pd to Prov | | l |
| | 00001 | | | 2151983 Smith Robert | 17230700002000 555555555A | 01 | 08/12/17-08/12/17 | A6261 A1 | Rea | 40.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 Remark | 0.00 Codes: N11 | 0.00 | | l |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | l |
| | | | | | | | | | - 41 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | - | 4 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | i |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | L M | 1 |

Figure 10 Professional - The Denied Service Lines Report



Reading a Professional SPR

Providers who elect to receive a paper RA receive the SPR. Recipients of an SPR receive the same critical remittance information as recipients of the ERA. However, SPRs do not contain as many fields as ERAs and are organized differently. SPRs look different based on the type of provider. SPRs for institutional providers (for example, hospitals) look different from those for professional providers (for example, physicians). Additionally, SPR formats may vary by the MAC that provides the SPR. Figures (example SPRs) in this section are meant as a reference, and may vary from what providers actually see.

Types of SPRs Available

You may generate your own SPR by choosing to receive an electronic 835 file and using the MREP software to view and print the 835 in SPR format. There are slight differences between SPRs you receive from a MAC and SPRs you generate from the MREP software (referred to as the MREP SPR). The remainder of this chapter addresses how to read SPRs you receive from a MAC.

How Do I Switch from an SPR to an ERA?

If you currently receive SPRs and are interested in switching to ERAs, contact the Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) department of your MAC at their toll free number. Note: MACs no longer send the SPR to professional providers who also have been receiving ERAs for 45 days or more.

Components of the Professional SPR

Professional SPRs are split into four basic sections:

- 1. Header Information (Section 1 of **Figure 11** and **12 Professional**) This section contains header information and a bulletin board section
- 2. Assigned Claims (Sections 2 and 3 of **Figure 11 Professional**) This section provides detailed information for each individual assigned claim
- 3. Unassigned Claims (Section 2 of **Figure 12 Professional**) This section provides detailed information for each individual unassigned claim
- 4. Glossary (Section 3 of **Figure 12 Professional**) This section lists all CARCs and RARCs and their appropriate text that appear on the SPR



The example SPR shown in **Figure 11** and **12 Professional** consists of two pages. Header information and the assigned claims are on the first page (**Figure 11 Professional**) while unassigned claim information and the glossary are on the second page (**Figure 12 Professional**).

| 1 | EXAMPLE MEDICARE CARRIER 1000 SOMEPLACE LANE FAIRFAX. VA 22033-0000 1-877-555-1234 I-877-555-1234 EXAMPLE MEDICARE PROVIDER 200 DOCTORS DRIVE SUBJE MEDICARE PROVIDER 200 DOCTORS DRIVE SUBJE 200 SOMEWHERE, NJ 16666-0200 WELCOME TO THE MEDICARE PART B STANDARD PAPER REMITTANCE | |
|---|---|--|
| 2 | PERF PROV SERV DATE POS NOS PROC MODS BILLED ALLOWED DEDUCT COINS GRP/RC ANT PROV PD NAME ALPHA, BEN HIC 9999999999 ACNT ALPH6123133-01 ICN 0202199306840 ASG Y MOA MA01 123456ABC 0225 022502 11 99213 66.00 49.83 0.34 9.97 PR-96 16.17 39.52 PT RESP 10.31 CLAIM TOTALS 66.00 49.83 0.34 9.97 PR-96 16.17 39.52 NAME ALPHA, BEN HIC 999999999 ACNT ALPH6123133-01 ICN 0202199306850 ASG Y MOA MA01 MA07 123456ABC 0117 011702 11 199213 66.00 49.83 0.00 9.97 PR-96 16.17 39.86 CLAIM NFORMARDED TO: NEU JERSEY MEDICAID NET 39.86 NAME DELTA, PATI HIC 999999999 ACNT DELT5-329 ICN 0202199306860 | |
| | NAME GAMMA, RAYMOND HIC 9999999999 ACNT GAMMA61-316 ICN 0202199306870 ASG Y ANOI HAOT 123356ABC 0209 020902 11 99213 66 00 49.83 0.00 9.97 PR=96 16.17 39.86 FT PRESP 9.97 CLAIN TOTALS 66.00 49.83 0.00 9.97 PR=96 16.17 39.86 ADJ TO TOTALS: PREV PD 10.00 INT 0.00 9.97 16.17 39.86 CLAIN INFORMATION FORVARDED TO: NEW JERSEY MEDICAID NEW JERSEY MEDICAID NET 29.86 NAME KAPPA, MARY HIC 9999999999 ACNT KAPP33-721 ICN 0202199306880 ASG Y MOA MA01 MA07 123456ABC 0314 031402 11 9213 66.00 49.83 0.00 9.97 PR=96 16.17 39.86 123456ABC 0314 031402 11 9213 66.00 49.83 0.00 9.97 PR-96 16.17< | |
| 3 | TOTALS: # of CLAINS BILLED AMT ALLOWED AMT DEDUCT AMT COINS TOTAL PROV PROV CHECK 5 321.00 211.47 0.34 39.88 109.53 161.25 25.44 135.81 PROVIDER ADJ DETAILS: PIB REASON CODE FCN HIC AMOUNT FB 0202199306770 999999999 10.00 | |

Figure 11 Professional - Example of a Professional SPR – Page 1



Figure 12 Professional - Example of a Professional SPR – Page 2



Header Information

Section 1 of **Figure 11** and **12 Professional** shows the header information that appears on all pages of a Professional SPR. This section contains provider and MAC information for the SPR. **Figure 13 Professional** shows the header information on page one of the Professional SPR. One area of the header information contains the bulletin board section. This area, boxed in with asterisks, contains MAC-specific information. The bulletin board section only appears on the first page of the SPR. It does not appear on a paper remittance you print from the MREP software.



| EXAMPLE HEDICARE CARRIER 1000 SOHEPLACE LANE FAIRFAX, VA 22033-0000 1-877-555-1234 | MEDICARE REMITTANCE NOTICE | |
|---|--|----|
| EXAMPLE MEDICARE PROVIDER 200 DOCTORS DRIVE SUITE 200 SOMEWHERE, NJ 16666-0200 | NPI: 1234567890 PAGE #: 1 OF 2 DATE: CHECK/EFT #: 0002345 | 69 |
| WELCOME TO | E MEDICARE PART B STANDARD PAPER REMITTANCE | : |



Assigned Claims

Figure 14 Professional shows the assigned claims section of the Professional SPR. The assigned claims section starts with a header row. This header row (shown in Section A of **Figure 14 Professional**) provides a reference for the service-line-level and claim-level data that are displayed for each claim in the assigned claims section.

| PERF PROV SERV DATE POS NOS | PROC MODS | BILLED ALLOWED | DEDUCT COINS | GRP/RC AMT PROV PD 🔫 |
|---|--|---|---|---|
| NAME ALPHA, BEN HIC 123456ABC 0225 022502 11 1 PT RESP 10.31 | 99999999999 ACNT 99213 CLAIM TOTALS | ALPH6123133-01 66.00 49.83 66.00 49.83 | ICN 0202199306840 0.34 9.97 0.34 9.97 | ASG Y MOA MA01 PR-96 16.17 39.52 16.17 NET 39.52 |
| NAME ALPHA, BEN HIC 123456ABC 0117 011702 11 1 PT RESP 9.97 CLAIM INFORMATION FORWARDED T | 99999999999 ACNT 99213 CLAIM TOTALS D: NEW JERSEY 1 | ALPR6123133-01 66.00 49.83 66.00 49.83 MEDICAID | ICN 0202199306850 0.00 9.97 0.00 9.97 | ASG Y MOA MA01 MA07 PR-96 16.17 39.86 16.17 39.86 NET 39.86 |
| NAME DELTA, PATI HIC 123456ABC 0117 011702 11 1 123456ABC 0117 011702 11 1 PT RESP 0.00 0 0 | 99999999999 ACNT 90659 G0008 CLAIM TOTALS | DELT5-329 25.00 3.32 10.00 4.46 35.00 7.78 | ICN 0202199306860 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | ASG Y NOA MA01 CO-42 21.68 3.32 CO-42 5.54 4.46 27.22 7.78 NET 7.78 T |
| NAME GAMMA, RAYMOND HIC 123456ABC 0209 020902 11 1 PT RESP 9.97 ADJ TO TOTALS: PREV PD 10.0 CLAIM INFORMATION FORWARDED T | 99999999999 ACNT 99213 CLAIM TOTALS 0 INT 0.00 0: NEW JERSEY 1 | GAMMO861-316 66.00 49.83 66.00 49.83 LATE FILING MEDICAID | ICN 0202199306870 0.00 9.97 0.00 9.97 CHARGE 0.00 | ASG Y MOA MA01 MA07 PR-96 16.17 39.86 16.17 39.86 NET 29.86 |
| MARE MARY HLC 123456ABC 0314 031402 11 1 REM: M80 97 97 | 99213 82962 94760 | KAPP 33-721 66.00 49.83 10.00 4.37 12.00 0.00 | 0.00 9.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | PR-96 16.17 39.86 CO-42 5.63 4.37 CO-B15 12.00 0.00 |

Figure 14 Professional - The Assigned Claims Section of the Professional SPR

After the header row claims appear individually (shown in Section B of **Figure 14 Professional**). Each claim starts with **NAME** in the upper left, and ends with **NET** and an amount in the lower right. A single line separates each claim. The Professional SPR displays names in alphabetical order by last name. **Figure 15 Professional** shows a single claim from the assigned claims section. The fields displayed for each claim are described in the following sections.

| Figure 15 Profession | al - Information | for an Individual C | laim |
|-----------------------------|------------------|---------------------|------|
|-----------------------------|------------------|---------------------|------|

| NAME KAPP | PA, MARY | HIC | 99999999999 | ACNT | KAPP33- | -721 | ICN 020219 | 9306880 | ASG Y MOA M | A01 MA07 |
|-------------------------------------|---|---|-------------------------|------|-------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---|-----------------------|
| 123456ABC 123456ABC 123456ABC | 0314 031402 0314 031402 0314 031402 | $ \begin{array}{ccc} 11 & 1 \\ 11 & 1 \\ 11 & 1 \end{array} $ | 99213 82962 94760 | | 66.00 10.00 12.00 | 49.83 4.37 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 9.97 0.00 0.00 | PR-96 16.17 CO-42 5.63 CO-B15 12.00 | 39.86 4.37 0.00 |
| REM: M80 PT RESP | 9.97 | | CLAIM TOTAL | S. | 88.00 | 54.20 | 0.00 | 9.97 | 33.80 NET 44 | 44.23 .23 |



Assigned Claims - Claim-Level Information

The first six fields apply to the claim as a whole. Claim information is then broken out at a service-line level.

Assigned Claims - Service-Line-Level

Information after this initial line of claim-level information is broken out by service lines. In the example shown in **Figure 15 Professional**, there are three separate service lines.

Some claims have additional RARCs that apply to the claim at a service-line level. These codes appear immediately under that service-line. An example of this is the **REM: M80** text as shown in **Figure 16 Professional**.

Assigned Claims - Totals

After the service lines are broken out, there is some additional information that is included for each claim. These fields start with the PT RESP field. **Figure 16 Professional** shows a closer view of this portion of the SPR. These fields are described in this section.

Figure 16 Professional - Information for an Individual Claim

| NAME KAPPA | A, MAR | Y | H | IC | 9999999999 | 9 ACNT | KAPP33- | -721 | | ICN 020219 | 99306880 | ASG Y | MOA M | A01 MA07 |
|------------|--------|--------|----|----|------------|--------|---------|------|----|------------|----------|--------|-------|----------|
| 123456ABC | 0314 | 031402 | 11 | 1 | 99213 | | 66.00 | 49. | 83 | 0.00 | 9.97 | PR-96 | 16.17 | 39.86 |
| 123456ABC | 0314 | 031402 | 11 | 1 | 82962 | | 10.00 | 4. | 37 | 0.00 | 0.00 | CO-42 | 5.63 | 4.37 |
| 123456ABC | 0314 | 031402 | 11 | 1 | 94760 | | 12.00 | 0. | 00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | CO-B15 | 12.00 | 0.00 |
| REM: M80 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| PT RESP | 9.97 | , | | | CLAIM TO | TALS | 88.00 | 54. | 20 | 0.00 | 9.97 | | 33.80 | 44.23 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | N | ET 44 | . 23 |

Some claims, as shown in **Figure 17 Professional**, show the **CLAIM INFORMATION FORWARDED TO** field. This field is displayed when a claim is being forwarded to a beneficiary's supplemental insurer. The supplemental insurer's name usually appears in this field.

Figure 17 Professional - Information for an Individual Claim

| NAME GAMMA, RAYMOND | HIC 9999999999 ACNT | GAMM861-316 I(| CN 0202199306870 | ASG Y MOA MA01 MA07 |
|-------------------------|------------------------|----------------|------------------|---------------------|
| 123456ABC 0209 020902 | 11 1 99213 | 66.00 49.83 | 0.00 9.97 | PR-96 16.17 39.86 |
| PT RESP 9.97 | CLAIM TOTALS | 66.00 49.83 | 0.00 9.97 | 16.17 39.86 |
| ADJ TO TOTALS: PREV | PD 10.00 INT 0.0 | 8 LATE FILING | CHARGE 0.00 | |
| CLAIN INFORMATION FORWA | ARDED TO: NEW JERSEY 1 | MEDICAID | | NET 29.86 |



Assigned Claims - Adjustments Line

The adjustments line appears for assigned claims, if applicable. These fields are described in this section. **Note:** Paper remittances you print from the MREP software handle adjusted claims differently from the SPR. When the MAC generates the SPR, it nets the amount it paid on the original claim to the amount it paid on the adjusted claim. The **NET** amount for the claim reflects the original and the adjusted claim. On a paper remittance you generate from the MREP software, the **PREV PD** field will always be blank. The MREP software handles this situation by showing both the original claim reversed, and then the adjusted claim with the current amounts allowed. MREP shows the whole correction and reversal process, while the SPR only shows the **NET** result.

Assigned Claims - Totals for All Assigned Claims

The assigned claims section of the SPR includes the totals line shown in **Figure 18 Professional**. These totals are for all assigned claims. On paper remittances you generate from the MREP software the totals section includes totals for all claims, assigned and unassigned.

Assigned Claims - Provider-Level Adjustment Detail

Below the claim totals is a section that lists provider-level adjustment details. This section shows adjustments that are not specific to a particular claim or service on this SPR. These appear as an adjustment from the provider's payment at the summary level.

The Use column indicates situations where Medicare uses codes that differ from the Provider-Level Adjustment Reason Codes to further clarify the reason for the financial adjustment.

Figure 18 Professional - Totals for the Assigned Claims and Provider Adjustment Details Sections

| 2 | TOTALS: | # of CLAIMS 5 | BILLED AMT 321.00 | ALLOWED AMT 211.47 | DEDUCT AMT 0.34 | COINS AMT 39.88 | TOTAL RC AMT 109.53 | PROV PD AMT 161.25 | PROV ADJ AMT 25.44 | CHECK AMT 135.81 | |
|---|---------|---------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|---------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|------------------------|--|
| J | PROVI | DER ADJ I | ETAILS: | PLB REAS | SON CODE 50 B | FCN 02021 | 99306770 | HIC 999999999999 | AMOUNT 15.44 10.00 | | |
| | | | | F | в | 02021 | 99306770 | 99999999999 | 10.00 | | |



Unassigned Claims

Figure 19 Professional shows the unassigned claims section of a Professional SPR. Unassigned claims appear separately in this section. All claims in this section display an "N" in the ASG field. Claims and service-line-level information appear in the same manner as in the assigned claims section. The RARC for unassigned claims always displays a MA28 code.

Unassigned Claims - Adjustments Line

The adjustments line may be displayed for unassigned claims. If the payment is going to the beneficiary it may be suppressed.

Figure 19 Professional - The Unassigned Claims Section of a Professional SPR

| | SUMMARY OF UNASSIGNED CLAIMS | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|----------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--|---------------------------|----------------|---------------------|--------------|
| | PERF PROV SERV DATE POS NOS PROC | MODS | BILLED | ALLOWED | DEDUCT | COINS | GRP/RC | AMT PRO | DV PD |
| 2 | NAME BETA, KEN HIC 999999999 123456ABC 0526 052602 11 1 99214 PT RESP 60.47 CLAIM TOTALS ADJ TO TOTALS: PREV PD 0.00. INT | 9 ACNT 0.00 | BETA7- 60.47 60.47 LATE F: | 002 52.58 52.58 ILLING CH4 | ICN 020219 0.00 0.00 NGE 0.00 | 9000150 10.52 10.52 | ASG N CO-42 | MOA 0.00 0.00 | MA28 7.89 |
| | NAME SIGMA, HELEN HIC 999999999 123456ABC 0222 022202 11 1 99214 PT RESP 60.47 CLAIM TOTALS ADJ TO TOTALS: PREV PD 0.00 INT | 9 ACNT 0.00 | SIGM4- 60.47 60.47 LATE F: | 567 52.58 52.58 LLING CHAF | ICN 020219 0.00 0.00 RGE 0.00 | 9140370 10.52 10.52 | ASG N CO-42 | MOA 0.00 0.00 | MA28 7.89 |





The Glossary Section

The glossary section of a Professional SPR (**Figure 20 Professional**) contains a list of all Group Codes, RARCs, CARCs and Provider-Level Adjustment Reason Codes that appear on the SPR. Each code appears with its appropriate text. Look at this section for an explanation regarding the adjustments your MAC made on the SPR. You may find all RARCs and CARCs at <u>http://www.wpc-edi.com/reference</u>. For a complete listing of Provider-Level Adjustment Codes, refer to the "ASC X12N 835 Implementation Guide: Health Care Claim Payment/Advice", which is available at <u>http://www.wpc-edi.com/products/healthcare/4010/combined-guides/</u>.

Figure 20 Professional - The Glossary Section of a Professional SPR







Balancing a Professional RA

Remittance balancing reconciles differences between payment amounts on the RA with the amounts you actually billed. Balancing requires that the total paid is equal to the total billed, plus or minus any payment adjustments. According to HIPAA, every electronic transaction a MAC issues must balance at the service-line, claim, and transaction levels.

General Rules for Remittance Balancing

The following ERA field completion and calculation rules apply to the corresponding fields in the SPR:

- 1. The CHECK AMT (BPR02 field in the 835) is the sum of all claim-level payments, less any providerlevel adjustments (PLB segment in the 835).
- Any adjustment applied to the submitted charge and/or units appears in the claim or service adjustment segments with the appropriate Group Codes, CARCs, and RARCs explaining the adjustments. The same adjustment may not appear at both the claim and the service-line level of an RA. Every provider-level adjustment appears in the provider-level adjustment section of the SPR (PLB segment in the 835).
- 3. The computed NET field must include PROV PD (the calculated payment to the provider), interest, late filing charges, and previous payments.
- 4. Any positive adjustments (for example, deductible paid by the beneficiary) reduce the provider's amount of payment from Medicare.
- 5. Any negative adjustments (for example, interest on a clean claim that is paid after the 29th day from receipt) increase the amount of the payment from Medicare. Any adjustment with a negative sign reflects an increase in Medicare payment.

Transaction-Level Balancing

Within the transaction, the sum of all claim payments minus the sum of all provider-level adjustments equals the total payment amount. Use transaction-level balancing to reconcile the check amount with the total submitted charges and the sum of all adjustments.

The transaction-level balancing formula is:

Total of claim payment amounts included in this RA

- Provider-level adjustment(s) made to the claim payments

Total Payment Amount

(This should match the check or EFT amount)



On a Professional ERA

You can balance a Professional ERA at the transaction-level by viewing or printing a paper remittance using the MREP software and following the instructions below for transaction-level balancing of a Professional SPR. Providers using proprietary software should contact their vendor for instructions regarding balancing.

On a Professional SPR

The sum of all provider paid amounts is located in the PROV PD AMT field in each claim segment (**Figure 21 Professional**). The sum of total provider adjustment amounts appears in the PROV ADJ AMT field.

Figure 21 Professional - Highlighted Claim Segments and Fields Used for Transaction-Level Balancing on a Professional SPR

| | TOTALS: | # of | BILLED | ALLOWED | DEDUCT | COINS | TOTAL | PROV PD | PROV | CHECK | |
|-----|----------------|---------|--------|---------------|---------|--------|----------|--------------|-----------------|--------|--|
| 0 | CL | AIMS | AMT | AMT | AMT | AMT | RC AMT | AMT | ADJ AMT | AMT | |
| | 10000000000000 | 5 | 321.00 | 211.4/ | 0.34 | 39.88 | 109.53 | 161.25 | 25.44 | 135.81 | |
| L S | PROVIDER | ADJ DET | AILS: | PLB REAS 5 | ON CODE | FCN | | HIC | AMOUNT 15.44 | | |
| | | | | F | В | 020219 | 99306770 | 999999999999 | 10.00 | | |

Table 1 Professional shows the figures that are used to balance the SPR shown at the transaction level in **Figure 21 Professional**.

Table 1 Professional - Example Transaction-Level Balancing Fields

| DOLLAR AMOUNT | FIELD USED FOR BALANCING THIS SPR | DESCRIPTION |
|---------------|--------------------------------------|--|
| 161.25 | PROV PD AMT | Total of claim payment amounts. |
| -25.44 | PROV ADJ AMT | Total Provider-Level Adjustments. |
| 135.81 | CHECK AMT | The Check/EFT Amount. This amount equals the total of claim payment amounts minus the total provider-level adjustments. Therefore this SPR balances at the transaction level. |



Claim-Level Balancing

Claim-level balancing encompasses the entire claim for one beneficiary. Providers should apply claim-level balancing to settle an individual claim. Claim-level balancing subtracts the sum of all adjustments applied to this claim from the submitted charges for this claim. You cannot take the same adjustment at both the service line and claim levels.

The claim-level balancing formula is:

Total submitted charge for this claim

Monetary adjustment amounts applied to this claim

Paid Amount for this Claim

On a Professional ERA

You can balance a Professional ERA at the claim-level by viewing or printing a paper remittance using the MREP software and following the instructions below for claim-level balancing of a Professional SPR. Providers using proprietary software should contact their vendor for instructions regarding balancing.

On a Professional SPR

The information necessary to perform claim-level balancing on a Professional SPR appears on the CLAIM TOTALS field (in the middle left-hand side of the SPR in **Figure 22 Professional**). This field horizontally lists the total BILLED, ALLOWED, DEDUCT, COINS (coinsurance), AMT (this is the adjustment amount), and PROV PD amounts for a single claim (**Figure 22 Professional**). Subtracting the DEDUCT, COINS, and AMT amounts in this CLAIM TOTALS from the BILLED amount yields the amount in the PROV PD field.

Figure 22 Professional - Highlighted SPR Fields Page Used for Claim-Level Balancing on a Professional SPR

| PERF | PROV | SERV | DATE | POS | NOS | 6 PROC | MODS | BILLED | ALLOWED | DEDUCT | COINS | GRP/RC | AMT | PROV PD |
|--------------|-------|-------|--------|-----|-----|----------|----------|---------|---------|-----------|----------|--------|-------|----------|
| NAME | KAPPA | , MAR | Y | F | HIC | 99999999 | 999 ACNT | KAPP33- | -721 | ICN 02021 | 99306880 | ASG Y | MOA M | A01 MA07 |
| 1234 | 56ABC | 0314 | 031402 | 11 | 1 | 99213 | - | (6.00 | 42.05 | 0.00 | 3.37 | FR-50 | 10.11 | 20 06 |
| 1234 | 56ABC | 0314 | 031402 | 11 | 1 | 82962 | | 10.00 | 4.37 | 0.00 | 0.00 | CO-42 | 5.63 | 4.37 |
| 1234 REM: | M80 | 0314 | 031402 | 11 | 1 | 94/60 | | 12.00 | | | | | | 0.00 |
| PT R | ESP | 9.97 | | | | CLAIM T | OTALS | 88.00 | 54.20 | 0.00 | 9.97 | | 33.80 | 44.23 |



Table 2 Professional shows the figures that are used to balance the SPR shown in **Figure 22 Professional** at the claim level.

Table 2 Professional - Example Claim-Level Balancing Fields

| DOLLAR AMOUNT | FIELD USED FOR BALANCING THIS CLAIM | DESCRIPTION |
|---------------|--|--|
| 66.00 | BILLED | Total submitted charge for this claim. |
| -9.97 | COINS | A claim-level adjustment due to the coinsurance amount. |
| -16.17 | АМТ | A claim-level adjustment. This adjustment would be explained by the Group and Claim Adjustment Reason Code (PR-96, in this case). |
| 39.86 | PROV PD | The paid amount for this claim. This amount equals the total claim payment amount minus the total claim-level adjustments. Therefore, this claim balances. |

Service-Line-Level Balancing

Submitted charge for this service

- Monetary adjustment amount applied to this service

Paid Amount for this Service

ERA

You can balance a Professional ERA at the service-line-level by viewing or printing a paper remittance using the MREP software and following the instructions below for service-line-level balancing of a Professional SPR.

Providers using proprietary software contact your vendor for instructions regarding balancing.



SPR

Service-line-level balancing subtracts the total amount of all adjustments (including amounts in the DEDUCT, COINS, and AMT columns) from the total amount the provider billed (found in the BILLED column). The resulting amount should equal the amount the MAC paid the provider (found in the PROV PD column).

Figure 23 Professional - Highlighted Fields Used for Service-Line-Level Balancing on a Professional SPR

| PERF | PROV | SERV | DATE | POS | NOS | 5 PROC | MODS | BILLED | ALLOWED | DEDUCT | COINS | GRP/RC | AMT | PROV PD |
|--------------|----------------|-------|---------------|-----|-----|----------------|----------|---------|---------|-----------|----------|--------|-------|----------|
| NAME | KAPPA | , MAR | Y | Н | IC | 99999999 | 999 ACNT | KAPP33- | -721 | ICN 02021 | 99306880 | ASG Y | MOA M | A01 MA07 |
| 1234 1234 | 56ABC 56ABC | 0314 | 031402 031402 | 11 | 1 | 99213 82962 | | 10.00 | 4.37 | 0.00 | 0.00 | CO-42 | 5.63 | 4.37 |
| 1234 | 56ABC | 0314 | 031402 | 11 | 1 | 94760 | | 12.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | CO 815 | 12.00 | 0.00 |
| PT R | ESP | 9.97 | | | | CLAIM T | OTALS | 88.00 | 54.20 | 0.00 | 9.97 | | 33.80 | 44.23 |

Table 3 Professional shows the figures that are used to balance the SPR shown in **Figure 23 Professional** at the service-line level for a selected service line (the example is based on the service line with PROC 82962).

Table 3 Professional - Example Service-Line-Level Balancing Fields

| DOLLAR AMOUNT | FIELD USED FOR BALANCING THIS CLAIM | DESCRIPTION |
|---------------|--|--|
| 10.00 | BILLED | Total submitted charge for this service line. |
| -5.63 | AMT | A service-line-level adjustment. This adjustment would be explained by a Group Code and a CARC (CO-42, in this case), |
| 4.37 | PROV PD | The paid amount for this service line. This amount equals the total submitted charge for this service line minus the total service line-level adjustments. Therefore this service line balances. |



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQS)

| TOPIC/ISSUE | ANSWER |
|--|---|
| | PC-Print is free software, which is a Personal Computer (PC)-based ANSI ASC X12 835 translator interactive program. It allows you to view and print the Medicare Part A ERA. |
| PC-Print | PC Print software is available for Medicare Part A providers to view and print HIPAA-compliant ERAs from their own computer. If your current system does not have ERA capability, PC Print software is available at no cost. This software is easy to use and will save you both time and money if you are currently receiving SPR and transition to ERA. |
| | • Your MAC makes PC Print software available to you as a download for no charge. Your MAC may charge up to \$25.00 per mailing to recoup cost if the software is sent to you on a CD/DVD or by any other means at provider's request when the software is available for downloading. You may contact your MAC's EDI Helpline if you need assistance in obtaining PC-Print. |
| | • Yes, you may view or print the ERA in a format similar to the SPR. |
| Does PC-Print provide an option for viewing/printing the ERA that | • To view the entire ERA, import the ERA that you wish to view and click on the button for the All Claims (AC) screen. This screen displays the data in a manner similar to the content and format of an SPR. |
| minics the paper remitance? | To print the entire ERA, after selecting the AC screen, just click on the printer button and this allows you to print the entire ERA in a format that is similar to the SPR. |
| How long is the EPA available in | Once you have downloaded an ERA from your EDI mailbox and saved it to your office computer, open it in PC-Print. |
| PC-Print? After PC-Print is closed, | Browse to the directory where you saved your 835 ERAs. |
| | If there is a problem retrieving your RA, reload it to your EDI mailbox. Please contact Medicare EDI at 1-888-670-0940, option one. |



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQS) CONTINUED

| TOPIC/ISSUE | ANSWER |
|---|--|
| What is MREP? | • CMS provides this free software for Part B professional providers and suppliers. This software allows viewing and printing of the HIPAA-compliant 835. You can use this software to access and print RA information including special reports from the HIPAA 835. MREP enables you to print HIPAA ASC X12 835 version 5010A1 files to a format that is similar to the traditional SPR format. You can use MREP to view, search, and print RAs; and print and export reports containing RA information. |
| If I sign up for ERA will it affect how I receive my payment? | No, ERA and Medicare payments are two separate functions. If you sign up for ERA, it will not impact the way Medicare pays your claims. |
| Will I be able to access ERAs that Medicare issued prior to the date I signed up for ERA? | No, ERA becomes effective the day you sign up. You cannot access RAs that were issued before you signed up. |

RA RESOURCES

| FOR MORE INFORMATION | RESOURCE |
|---|---|
| Medicare Claims Processing Manual Chapter on Remittance | Chapter 22 |
| Electronic Remit Advice (ERA) and Standard Paper Remit (SPR) | Health Care Payment and Remittance Advice |
| Remittance Advice Information: An Overview Booklet, ICN 908325 | RA Overview Booklet |
| Washington Publishing Company (WPC) website | Washington Publishing Company |



| EMBEDDED URL | COMPLETE URL |
|---|---|
| ASC X12N 835 | https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Billing/ ElectronicBillingEDITrans/index.html |
| ASC Companion Guide | http://www.wpc-edi.com/reference/repository/006020CC.pdf |
| Chapter 22 | https://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance/Guidance/ Manuals/downloads/clm104c22.pdf |
| Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) Support | https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Billing/ ElectronicBillingEDITrans/index.html |
| Health Care Payment and RA | https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Billing/ ElectronicBillingEDITrans/Remittance.html |
| MAC's EDI Helpline | https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Billing/ ElectronicBillingEDITrans/Downloads/EDIHelplines.pdf |
| MREP User's Guide | https://www.cms.gov/Research-Statistics-Data-and-Systems/ CMS-Information-Technology/AccesstoDataApplication/ downloads/EasyPrintUserGuide.pdf |
| <u>NPI</u> | https://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance/ Administrative-Simplification/NationalProvIdentStand/ |
| PC Print User Guide | https://medicare.fcso.com/PC-Print_software/210042.pdf |
| RA Overview Booklet | https://www.cms.gov/Outreach-and-Education/Medicare- Learning-Network-MLN/MLNProducts/Downloads/Remit- Advice-Overview-Fact-Sheet-ICN908325.pdf |
| WPC Reference | http://www.wpc-edi.com/reference/ |
| 5010 Resources | https://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance/HIPAA- Administrative-Simplification/Versions5010andD0/ Version_5010.html |



Medicare Learning Network® Disclaimer

The Medicare Learning Network®, MLN Connects®, and MLN Matters® are registered trademarks of the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services (HHS).

CPT only copyright 2016 American Medical Association (AMA). All rights reserved. CPT is a registered trademark of the AMA. Applicable FARS\DFARS Restrictions Apply to Government Use. Fee schedules, relative value units, conversion factors and/or related components are not assigned by the AMA, are not part of CPT, and the AMA is not recommending their use. The AMA does not directly or indirectly practice medicine or dispense medical services. The AMA assumes no liability for data contained or not contained herein.

The American Hospital Association (AHA) allows The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) permission to reproduce portions of the UB-04 Data Specifications Manual (UB-04 Manual) for training purposes. Please use the following guidance for including the appropriate copyright and disclaimer language regarding National Uniform Billing Codes (NUBC).

Copyright© 2017, the American Hospital Association, Chicago, Illinois. Reproduced with permission. No portion of the AHA copyrighted materials contained within this publication may be copied without the express written consent of the AHA. AHA copyrighted materials including the UB-04 codes and descriptions may not be removed, copied, or utilized within any software, product, service, solution or derivative work without the written consent of the AHA. If an entity wishes to utilize any AHA materials, please contact the AHA at 312-893-6816.

Making copies or utilizing the content of the UB-04 Manual, including the codes and/or descriptions, for internal purposes, resale and/or to be used in any product or publication; creating any modified or derivative work of the UB-04 Manual and/or codes and descriptions; and/or making any commercial use of UB-04 Manual or any portion thereof, including the codes and/or descriptions, is only authorized with an express license from the American Hospital Association.

To license the electronic data file of UB-04 Data Specifications, contact Tim Carlson at (312) 893-6816 or Laryssa Marshall at (312) 893-6814. You may also contact us at <u>ub04@healthforum.com</u>.

The AHA has not reviewed and is not responsible for the completeness or accuracy of any information contained in this material, nor was the AHA or any of its affiliates involved in the preparation of this material, or the analysis of information provided in the material. The views and/or positions presented in the material do not necessarily represent the views of the AHA. CMS and its products and services are not endorsed by the AHA or any of its affiliates.

